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Financial and Operational Highlights BB ¥ K=

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million,

unless specified) Notes 2011 2008

(AEBETETHAEN  RISBIFERIN) M —B——% —EENE
Turnover =EX 0 11,862 10,538 9,998 9,669 8,299
Profit for the year AAREBER
attributable to ordinary FrE&EML
equity holders of the AN FE A
Company 1,133 1,007 860 926 625
Total equity 148 3% 5,513 4,793 4,275 3,916 3,315
Total assets BEE 12,260 8,255 6,792 6,890 5,842
Total liabilities to HmeFn
total equity ratio BRERF LR 1.2 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.8
Total interest-bearing B R ERE
debts to total equity ratio  #REZRE L =X 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.3 0.3
Current ratio TED b 1.6 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.6
Trade and bills receivables FEUBR X &
to turnover (days) EWEEL
EHEEE(H) 52 35 34 39 48
Inventory to turnover FELEXES
(days) (H) 91 75 60 60 57
Net assets per share BEREEFHE
(HK cents) (B #Al) 405 359 322 295 250
Return on total assets (%) #&E7EERE(%) 9.2 12.2 12.7 13.4 10.7
Return on turnover (%) EEFEOKRE (%) 9.6 9.6 8.6 9.6 7.5
Interest cover (times) F EARPE L &
(F#) 58 118 26 29 16
EBITDA BB -FER
1 85 5 F 1,803 1,549 1,389 1,578 1,076
EBITDA on turnover (%) BB -ER
1 85 A1 7
b & 2580 (%) 15.2 14.7 13.9 16.3 13.0




Financial and Operational Highlights B i ¥ K HE

(Amounts expressed in HK$ million,

unless specified) Notes 2011 2008
(AEBETETHAEN  RISBIFERIN) M —B——% —EENE
Basic earnings per share EXBREF
(HK cents) (B #Al) 3 84.3 75.8 64.8 69.8 47.1
Dividends per share BRERE
(HK cents) B BAl) 53 48 40 43 27
Dividend yield (%) % 2.5 5] 2= (%) 4 6.4 5.6 10.0 7.7 5.1
Number of issued shares ERTRHHE
(million) (A &) 1,361 1,335 1,327 1,327 1,326
Number of employees: EEAZ:
Hong Kong and Macau EHEREM 785 728 704 716 682
Taiwan /g 700 696 741 860 986
Mainland China R K BE 22,770 22,620 22,254 23,372 21,300
Singapore Fh0 3% — — 197 369 522
Malaysia BRAE — — 160 185 256
Total Rk 24,255 24,044 24,056 25,502 23,746
Notes: Hfat -
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and 1. FIBRELL R 2 it ERBERFE 5 2 i FIEEF 2
tax by the interest expenses. BHZHEE-
2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ~ 2. EBITDAA AR FIE - B8 - #TEE R B35 E FRIFIE
expenses.
3 Number of shares was on weighted average basis. 3 R EE LI TR ENE -

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the 4 REEHEZ A E R ERRE BB R SR

closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting BRUTFEZLEE -
periods.
5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for 5. B E T35 A R BRI AR B FE R ¥4 - A

o8 F RIS R EEREBIFR S B R 2 158 ©

each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the

Group as at the end of the respective reporting periods.



Chairman’s Statement FERGE

I am delighted to inform you that the Group attained another record
high results for this financial year. Total revenue and net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$11,862 million and HK$1,133 million respectively. Please refer to
the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section in this report for
more information regarding the Group's operating performance.

In the year, global economy had stabilized from the unfavourable
conditions in the international economic crisis. However, the textile
industry remained challenging due to rising raw material cost. The
Group had exercised all efforts to protect the profit level and gross
profit margin for the textile business slightly dropped to 20.4% from
last year’s 21.6%. Amidst such tough environment, the textile industry
experienced rapid consolidation. The Group has continued to expand

capacity to enlarge market share.

The retail business achieved much improved results in the year.
Revenue and net profit grew 18.1% and 62.4% respectively. In the
period, 255 new outlets were added in the mainland China. The
consumer sentiment in China is robust and the Group will continue its

expansion there.

Looking ahead, the global economy will have further improvements.
The textile business would be a bit uncertain in the short run, but the
industry consolidation will provide excellent future expansion
opportunities. The retail operation is on a smooth path to offer even

stronger results.

The management has made comprehensive plans for the new fiscal
year. About HK$300 million capital expenditure will be utilized to
increase textile productivity and establish new retail stores. The
management is optimistic to deliver improved results next year.

The Board and | wish to express our gratitude to our shareholders and

business partners for their continuous support. We would also like to
thank our colleagues for their outstanding contribution to the Group.

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group’s total revenue
increased by 12.6% to HK$11,862 million (2010: HK$10,538 million).
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$1,133 million (2010: HK$1,007 million), a rise of
12.5%. The Group's gross profit margin was 33.7% (2010: 33.4%), a
slight increase of 0.3% from last year. The Board has recommended a
final dividend of HK30.0 cents (2010: HK26.0 cents) per ordinary share.
Including interim dividend, total dividend per ordinary share would be

HK53.0 cents, an increase of 10.4% from last year’s HK48.0 cents.

Textile business

Revenue of the textile business amounted to HK$5,971 million (2010:
HK$5,540 million), a growth of 7.8%. The sum represented 50.3% of
the Group’s total revenue. The operating environment was
unfavourable due to the sharp rise of raw material cost. The Group
had to surrender some risky rush orders as longer tenor was required
to secure the raw materials in such a volatile situation. Gross profit
margin slightly dropped to 20.4% from last year's 21.6%. Average
selling price was up by 23.0% and sales volume decreased by 15.9%. In
the period, the performance and the key financial ratios of the

business were as below:

(HK$ million)

XK EE
BEZZ——S=A=1+—-HALEzABREE"
AEBZHARAERI26%EZEE11,862HE T
(ZZE—ZF :BH10538FET) AQAAEH
FEERBREAFEERZNABE1133BEBL (=2
—ZF  B¥1,0075E ) LH125% KA&EE
ZEMEEHIBI%(ZFT—FF :1334%) B &
FRMEFAIZ% ESSEBREATRES
ZERBE300L(ZE—ZF : BH26.01L) -
ERTHRE STBERBREALEAR B30
il » B K F 2B 48.01U1E N 10.4% o

HBER
PREBZBRAARBESINMBER(ZE—F
FB¥SSM0EET) ER78% - MEBAE
EMEMBWA2503% HARERRA LR £
BRETTELE - EEBHREFENEHRRE X
EEEERE-EAESHBRMEZSE - EFEA
EF221.6%EMTHEE204%c FHEFLFH
23.0%  MBEETHKI159% - HRAMEK 2K
BERFEGBLEERRIINT :

(B EETT)

Net sales HEFE 5,971
Gross profit margin (%) ERMZE(%) 20.4
Operating profit (note) EERHE (M) 908
EBITDA BB FER

(note) 18 85 50 R (B a2) 1,137
Return on total assets HEEWER(%)

(%) (note) (W a£) 8.3
Return on sales (%) (note)  $HE W= R (%) (K :t) 14.6
Return on equity (%) (note) #EzE U2 2= (%) (Kt :E) 17.4
Capital expenditure EARMZH 80

2010 2009
—2-TF —EENF

5,540 5,058 5,386 4,627

21.6 21.2 21.3 19.1

853 776 910 664

1,074 992 1,108 837

12.6 13.7 14.8 13.7

14.9 15.1 15.4 14.5

18.8 18.9 22.5 20.5

121 104 216 468

Note: Exclude interest income and rental income.

Kt : TEREFERARBEZRA -



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) % 7% B B8 ()

Retail and distribution business BERDHEK

Sales of the retail business increased remarkably by 18.1% to HK$5,857 ZE %K SEEE FEEE 18.1% 2 /8 #5,857
million (2010: HK$4,960 million). The amount represented 49.4% of BEXT(ZE—ZF  B849608E ) - kEHHE
the Group’s total turnover. The performance of this sector has AXREELEXE 2494% c EBFRRIFEE
continued to show improvement. Gross profit margin and operating # o ERZRRHE LK HZFNES M LEAF47.1%
profit margin rose to 47.1% (2010: 46.4%) and 6.9% (2010: 5.1%) (=& — Z F :46.4%) X6.9% (=T —F F:
respectively. In the period, the Group established additional 255 new  5.1%) o £ (< £= B 1€ F B A BE 1L 38 255 R ¥ JE o
stores in the mainland China. The China market has excellent HEGTIHEEEERREELH AEEBEEETRE
development potential and the Group will continue to focus its IHIER - RAHEIR :

expansion in this big country. At the year end:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as (a) XBXERFIEHELZBIIMT :
follows:

(HK$ million) 2011 2010 2008 2007
CEIEA S —e-——% “T-%F -% —2EN\F —EEtE
Net sales HEFH 5,857 4,960 4,900 4,239 3,625
Gross profit margin (%) EFZE(%) 47.1 46.4 453 49.1 47.8
Sales growth of comparable ALt /EfHEEE R
shops (%) (note 1) be 2= (%) (FE1) 13.8 3.7 6.5 21.4 2.9
Operating profit (note 2) & 28 (#f:£2) 407 253 160 242 21
EBITDA B B -ERE
(note 2) $H AR (FaE2) 495 351 279 364 147
Return on total assets (%) #&EEWZER(%)
(note 2) (Mta£2) 12.5 9.7 5.5 2.1 (0.4)
Return on sales (%) HEWEE(%)
(note 2) (Ktat2) 5.0 3.7 1.3 0.8 (0.4)
Return on equity (%) ¥ 75 W 3= (%)
(note 2) (Ktat2) 38.6 40.0 23.5 26.2 (9.1)
Capital expenditure EARMESH 109 53 107 76 141
Notes: Bfat
(1) Comparable shops of a year include shops with full year operation (1) AL EHIERZERAT—FHEEFE
during the year and the preceding year. BN o

(2)  Exclude interest income and rental income. 2) FTEEFEFERAREEZLA -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BIEE il &k 547

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥ EEE
Retail and distribution business (continued) BERDER(E
(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: by BRFIEREHEESIHNAOT :
(HK$ million)
(B EET)
Baleno It fE B% 3,089 2,463 2,311 1,589 1,584
S&K S&K 846 757 809 826 601
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 643 601 639 528 441
ebase ebase 399 326 383 462 398
Others Hi 880 813 758 834 601
Total &5t 5,857 4,960 4,900 4,239 3,625
() the development in different markets was as follows: (0 BHLMEHEBROT :
Mainland China A R K B

2009 2008

—ETNF ZBTN\F

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) CEMEET) 4,987 4,097 3,834 3,124 2,431
Increase in net sales SHEFREZEM

(%) (%) 22 7 23 29 10
Retail floor area TEREERE

(sq.ft.)** (FT5IR) 2,162,123 1,748,531 1,866,008 1,692,967 1,672,807
Number of sales associates** £ & £ & B ** 11,348 9,957 10,701 10,442 11,089
Number of outlets*2 MmEE* 3,894 3,639 3,828 3,477 3,347

Hong Kong and Macau BEBRAEM

2010 2009 2008 2007

—®-%5 -BENF “BB/\F _BELF

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) (B EH B T) 465 416 402 404 476
Increase/(decrease) SEETERE N

in net sales (%) /OB (%) 12 3 (1) (15) (4)
Retail floor area TEREEE

(sq.ft.)** (FHR) ** 54,960 52,555 56,131 63,957 74,907
Number of sales associates** £ & £ & F ** 482 422 398 396 447

Number of outlets*# MmEE* 63 62 65 70 87




Management'’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EF A6 )
Retail and distribution business (continued) BERDHEER (&

() the development in different markets was as follows: (c) BMHISERREBERUOT : (&)

(continued)

Taiwan RiE

2009 2008 2007

“EBAF —BRN\F —BBLF

Net sales HEFH

(HK$ million) (B EET) 405 375 426 397 427
Increase/(decrease) SEEFRE M

in net sales (%) S CRA) (%) 8 (12) 7 (7) (17)
Retail floor area TEEEER

(sq.ft.)** (FFFHR) ** 135,734 125,497 187,230 199,443 202,080
Number of sales associates** &€& 8 # H ** 608 602 641 747 874
Number of outlets *2 PAm 8B > 161 154 194 217 259

Singapore 7 03

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—®-—-% -T-TF —TTAF —FTTN\F —TTLF

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$ million) CEMEET) — 48 166 233 221
Increase/(decrease) SEETERE 2N

in net sales (%) /S OR) (%) (100) (71) (29) 5 26
Retail floor area SEEAEE

(sq.ft.)** (FFTHR) ** — — 24,877 43,149 61,601
Number of sales associates** €& &£ B ** — — 157 318 456
Number of outlets** Fe g g * — — 23 44 64

Malaysia BRAEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—®-—F “B-FF -“BEAF “BE\F -—BRLF

Net sales HEFH
(HK$ million) (B EET) — 24 72 81 70
Increase/(decrease) SHEFE M
in net sales (%) S CRD) (%) (100) (67) (11) 16 71
Retail floor area ZEEEEE
(sq.ft.)** (FHR) ** — — 33,185 44,630 59,170
Number of sales associates** €& & & B ** — — 134 149 243
Number of outlets** P g g — — 16 20 30
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIREH R
# For self-managed stores # HE &

A Including self-managed and franchise stores A BIEREERIFTAE T



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Garment manufacturing business

The Group conducted its garment manufacturing business via its
investment in an associate. Revenue of this associate decreased 4.9%
to HK$1,215 million (2010: HK$1,277 million). Net profit contribution
to the Group amounted to HK$56 million (2010: HK$42 million), a rise
of 33.3%. In the year, 66.7% (2010: 80.7%) of the fabric consumed
was supplied by the Group’s textile arm and sales to the retail
operation accounted for 29.6% (2010: 20.9%) of its revenue. Also due
to rising costs, business environment was uneasy in the period.
However, the management has exercised stringent cost control to
enhance operating efficiency. Gross profit margin thus increased to
15.2% from last year’s 10.9%.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank debts and the gearing ratio as at the year
end were 1.6, HK$3,588 million and 0.0 (2010: 1.9 HK$1,713 million
and 0.0) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the total
interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash equivalents, to the total
equity. The decrease in current ratio was mainly due to the increase in
intra-group bills payable and total bank debts. The increase in total
bank debts was mainly for financing the increase in inventory level
and foreign currency bank deposits for the hedge of the surge in raw
material prices and the exposure to foreign currency risk. With the
increase in foreign currency deposits, the Group was able to enjoy the
enhancement of the net yield from the deposits. The net cash inflow
from operating activities for the year was HK$1,256 million (2010:
HK$797 million).

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventory to turnover were 58 times, 52 days and 91
days (2010: 118 times, 35 days and 75 days) respectively. The drop in
interest cover was mainly due to the increase in finance costs as a
result of the rise in bank borrowings. The increase in the trade and
bills receivables to turnover was mainly due to the increase in intra-
group bills receivable. Excluding the intra-group bills receivable, the
trade and bills receivables to turnover during the year was 29 days
(2010: 35 days). The Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements
with cash inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At
the year end, the cash and cash equivalent, the equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities
were HK$4,233 million, HK$5,233 million and HK$4,735 million (2010:
HK$1,526 million, HK$4,573 million and HK$3,074 million) respectively.

XK EE )

BIREK

AEEZRERER BELNALEHLRKE
o MBMEEBWATKII%NEBEI215E
T(ZE—TF BEBI1277EE8R) YWAEEF
BANERARBEBSeEEL(ZZ—ZF B4
BET) #BMN333%° - FR 66.7%(ZF—=
F:80.7%) FEAMBHAEBEHBIDHEE > M
EFAEETEERAGEBATE26%(=F
—ZF 1209%) c FEARBALIR BERERN
HALRES o R BIEE BRI IR B AR L
BEBUBF ENEZEAMAEEZ109%EME
15.2% °

B B AR R

REHESRMKEER
AEBMPEEFTEINTERR - RAER K
B RITERLERERABEL RS A
1.6 B#3588FHETROO(ZE—F&F 19"
BEE1,713EBLR0.0)  c BEREBBELEDIENR
ReRBELEEYNEMEBEBERUEER K
BEERTH® TEHREERNBELFZERRIT
ERBEELIA-RTERGBELA T EHEY
MEEKERIEEFER BUHFSZREANE
PEXRREHWIIERR - FEEMIEEFR K
EEZEERNGERFOR AFLEMBHNR
ERANFEABBI26EET(ZE—BF 8
WII7THEET) °

RAFE FIBRELE - BERERAREKRZELL
EEFRAEXRARFEREEEAE XS R
AS8fE R2ARNK(ZZE—ZFF 1 118fF 35K
RISR) - AEREBLHLETHR TEREBITER
tH FEHBEREM  BRRARERZEL
EEERABRXE LA FEAREERATERE
BEA EHNREERADBERZEE  EBWREXR
REWEBELEEEABRYEAIXR(ZE—F
FIBR) - AEEFTEULEFRBREFAAR
RITERRMIHEEESHNER - RAFER ]
SRESEEY ALAEZFEERGREER
ABARITEEEI A ABBEI2BEET B
W5233H BT RBEAIEEL(ZE—FF .
BE1526E BT BEAST3EE T RER3,074
BE)



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2wl & 27

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Capital expenditure

In view of the modest economic recovery during the year, the textile
division of the Group continued to expand cautiously. For the retail
and distribution division, as the consumer spending sentiment in the
mainland China remained high during the year, the Group speeded up
its expansion plan. The total capital expenditure incurred by the
Group during the year was HK$189 million (2010: HK$174 million).
HK$80 million (2010: HK$121 million) was incurred by the textile
business mainly for the expansion of its manufacturing plant and the
addition of machinery. For the retail and distribution business, HK$109
million (2010: HK$53 million) was incurred mainly for the expansion of
its retail network in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March
2010.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March
2010 have been set out in note 34.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD floating rate
borrowings with maturity due within three years. As the economic
conditions continued to improve, the interest rate is expected to rise
steadily in the coming year. To reduce the interest rate risk, the Group
will arrange financial instruments to hedge the interest rate risk
whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD,
Renminbi, YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign
exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had about 24,300 (2010: 24,000)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, the Group also encourages its employees,
customers and business partners to partake in the above activities with
a view to develop a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities the Group participated in were:

(1)  Donation to World Wide Fund for Nature;
(2)  Dress Special Day 2010;

(3) HSBC Share-to-Care Volunteer Campaign;
(4) The Community Chest Green Day 2011;
(5)  Skip Lunch Day 2011; and

(6) Artistes 311 Love Beyond Borders.

For the year under review, The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
awarded the Group with the “Caring Company 2010/11” Logo in
recognition of the Group’s contribution to voluntary community
services.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporates and the
government. Therefore, the Group will continue to invest resources in
all major social and environmental protection activities to strive for a

better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

The global economy is anticipated to have further stabilization and
improvements. Affecting by the high raw material cost, the operating
environment of textile business will still be uncertain in the short run.
However, the tough situation has put the industry consolidation even
faster. In the coming years, the less competitive environment will

provide good expansion opportunities to the Group.

For the retail, the Group will continue its expansion in the fast-
growing China market. In the next year, the Group will add 250 to 300
new outlets in the place. The business is in a healthy foundation and
continuous improved performance is optimistically expected.

The Group has prepared about HK$300 million as capital expenditure
for the new financial year. In solid financial position, the Group
possesses strong competence for continuous development. The

management is confident to achieve improved results in the next year.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn, the retailing
and distribution of casual apparel and accessory, the provision of
franchise services, and the provision of repair and maintenance
services for motor vehicles. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 40 to 128.

An interim dividend of HK23.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 19
January 2011. The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK30.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year, to
shareholders on the Register of Members on 17 August 2011. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as
an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the

statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) BRERBE®)
Results E¥

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—E-—F CZE-ZF ZEENEFE ZEZEENFE CETLHE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EBHTF T B F T B F T BT T BEF T

REVENUE A 11,861,780 10,537,966 9,997,737 9,669,206 8,298,552
PROFIT BEFORE TAX & %% A% A 1,459,584 1,217,351 1,012,572 1,213,975 732,868
Income tax expense i (202,030) (116,607) (121,448) (254,843) (107,047)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7< £ & 3% R 1,257,554 1,100,744 891,124 959,132 625,821
Attributable to: =B
Ordinary equity ARFEB
holders of the R
Company mEE 1,133,241 1,007,213 860,357 926,351 625,148
Non-controlling EER
interests EE 124,313 93,531 30,767 32,781 673
1,257,554 1,100,744 891,124 959,132 625,821
Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling Interests EE BEHEFERER

As at 31 March
=B=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—E——F —ZT-TF —EZRE —EZN\F —EZTtHF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BETFT BT T BT T BT

TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 12,260,041 8,255,487 6,791,954 6,890,097 5,842,399
TOTAL LIABILITIES aEH8E (6,747,354)  (3,462,791)  (2,517,166)  (2,973,812)  (2,527,376)
NON-CONTROLLING  FE#ZRR

INTERESTS % (280,037) (219,840) (136,825) (96,933) (66,943)

5,232,650 4,572,856 4,137,963 3,819,352 3,248,080

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT ¥% - BMERREHRREN X
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and ZAEBRAFEZVE BMERREHERENE
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in ZZBFED I HNUBHRRMZT 13K 140

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS IR A & B8 IR R

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share ZAARARFARAEBERESB2FEREER
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set 22 Bl 5 E A B i R M FE29K% 30 °

out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements, respectively. e
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its own shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and the purchased shares were subsequently cancelled by the

Company. The details of the purchases were as follows:

Number of
shares

repurchased

EiEROGBE

25 February 2011 —E——®-A=-+HH 8,000
2 March 2011 —E——F=HZH 124,000
17 March 2011 —E2——F=A++tH 30,000
162,000

* The balance excluded repurchase expenses of HK$4,000.

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value thereof.
During the year, the premium paid on the purchase of the shares of
HK$1,230,000 and repurchase expenses of HK$4,000 have been
debited to the share premium account of the Company. An amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled has been
transferred from the retained profits of the Company to the capital

redemption reserve.

The purchases were effected by the directors pursuant to the general
mandate granted with a view to benefit the shareholders as a whole
by enhancing the net assets, and/or earnings per share of the
Company.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of
the Company.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements

and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

BRABRE
AT 2 AR B R R AR R R
EEXBERFADAEARUAARERRETH

B
BA BERKEEXDF LHES
RER ARABRERBEXRSAERL T

(TEE 32 Fr ) BB E B8 10 B IR 4D » © B8 Bl AR 4D B8 BN 3¢
RATEH BEAMANT

Price per share

SRERE Aggregate
Highest Lowest consideration
RE K& REZHE
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT AT BT
7.75 7.70 62,000
7.74 7.70 957,000
7.29 7.29 219,000
1,238,000"
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2011, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$499,502,000,
of which HK$408,284,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account and the
capital redemption in the aggregate amount of
HK$587,980,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

reserve,

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$446,000 (2010: HK$333,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kwan Chak (resigned on 1 April 2011)

Poon Kai Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Poon Ho Wa (appointed on 1 April 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:

Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April 2011)
Law Brian Chung Nin (appointed on 1 April 2011)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David,
and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and still considers them to be
independent as at the date of this report.

Al it 5 K % 48
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 63, is the chairman and chief executive
officer overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He
founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 36 years’ experience in
the textile field.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 59, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in 1975 and has more
than 36 years’ experience in the field. He is responsible for the
purchases, sales and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kwan Chak, aged 65, is the elder brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the group in 1976 and has more than 35 year’s related
experience. He was responsible for the Group’s merchandising and
sales management. He resigned on 1 April 2011.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 61, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than 31 years’
experience in the industry. He is responsible for the management of
the manufacturing operations of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Executive directors (continued)
Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 55,
administration and financial management of the Group. He joined the

is responsible for the general

Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking experience. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Wa, aged 34, is a son of Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an executive
director of the Company and a nephew of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr.
Poon Kei Chak and Mr. Poon Kwan Chak (resigned on 1 April 2011), all
of whom are executive directors of the Company. He is responsible for
helping the management of the textile business and production
development. He joined the Group in 2002 and has extensive
experience in the investment banking industry. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in management from The London School of Economics
and Political Science. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 April 2011.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 66, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008)
and a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is a former deputy chairman of
The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and
a former council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 61, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, aged 48, is a director of CFL Anchor Limited.
He is also the founder and president of Berkeley Club of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of California at Berkeley and is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25
years' experience in accounting, corporate finance, stockbroking and
fund management. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2004. He resigned on 1
April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 53, has been the General Manager
(Hong Kong and Investor Relations) of Samling Global Limited since
2009. He has worked for several major international accounting and
financial institutions. Besides, he possesses extensive experience in
auditing, corporate finance and private equity. Mr. Law graduated
from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree in Bachelor of
Commerce. He has been a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants since 1983. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1 April 2011.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 56, is a director of the Group's retail
operations. He holds a Master’'s degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15
years' experience in retail operations and MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 49, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a
Master's degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a certified practicing accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has more than 24 years’ experience in
auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 54, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 56, is the director and general manager of
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged in the
sale of finished knitted fabric and dyed yarn. He joined the Group in
1994 and has more than 37 years’ experience in the textile industry.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors in

the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated

EERROREEROZEZER KR

RZB-——F=ZA=Z+—-0 A28 REBEES
REEM®RP)E2GMEFNELH  HRE
(LT RRAEZETESXZNEETFA(RE
FRANDBAARARBERF SESELARAR
HgpBZB(EER(BZRBEMHEM) EXVE)
WROREERO 2EESRXBNT

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAQTREBERZHFAR :

Number of shares held and capacity

BREER S5
Percentage of
Directly or Through Through the Company’s
beneficially spouse or controlled issued share
Name of director owned minor children corporations capital
H#ER ERAER EAERARE %
EEnR BEER RRFF X ZEHA A TREABMHE
Executive directors: HITES:
Poon Bun Chak EWE 32,888,000 168,800,104 456,450,000? 658,138,104 48.3
Poon Kei Chak EROE 22,977,200 — 41,922,000 64,899,200 4.8
Poon Kwan Chak EHE
(resigned on (R=ZF——4F
1 April 2011) A — A B L) 18,770,800 - - 18,770,800 1.4
Poon Kai Chak EEE 10,702,800 — — 10,702,800 0.8
Ting Kit Chung THe® 4,100,000 - - 4,100,000 03
Independent non- BIYFHITES:
executive directors:
Au Son Yiu [=ped 100,000 — — 100,000 0.0
89,538,800 168,800,104 498,372,000 756,710,904 55.6
Notes: HfaE -
(1) The 168,800,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is (1) 5% 168800, 104 % IR 17 1 Farrow Star Limited 575 » Mi%
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc. as a trustee for The Evergreen 23 8] Bl 1 Perfection (PTC) Inc. X The Evergreen TrustZ
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include the family EAABBEERE ZERGETIZEZANCEE
members of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. These shares are held through his spouse WELEZFTIEKE - RIZ(GRFRBEFRA)  Z
or minor children in accordance with the SFO. ERUBRERLBARKF FLIFE °
(2)  The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in which ~ (2) 5%456,450,000/% B2 17 Farrow Star Limited #75 97.15%
Farrow Star Limited has a 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85% interest in ## 25 2 Giant Wizard Corporation# 5 ° Giant Wizard
Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak. Corporation 2 2.85% &2 BB W ESL LIER °
3) The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International Holdings 3 FZA192000 K IR 1 B HES ERAHESHE

Limited, in which Mr. Poon Kei Chak and his spouse each owned 50%

equity interests.

50% #1422 Treasure Link International Holdlings Limited
55 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

BITES:
B

Executive directors:
Poon Kei Chak
Poon Kwan Chak (resigned on 1 April 2011)

Poon Kai Chak EEE
Ting Kit Chung THR

Poon Ho Wa (appointed on 1 April 2011)

Independent non-executive directors: BIUFHTES:
Au Son Yiu BB
Cheng Shu Wing B 5] 4%

Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April 2011)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section “Share
option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

BHER-F-——FOA—HEE)

EEE (R —ZE——FNH— HEZF)

ERARR=-ZF——FOA—HEE)

EERROREBROZEZRAR
(#)
RAEDABREZFA

Number of
options directly

beneficially owned
EEFARER
BEBREHE

8,000,000
4,500,000
7,000,000
7,500,000

200,000

400,000
400,000
200,000

28,200,000

BREXHKEN R=F—-——F=ZA=+—-8H"
EEHMERAILNARNAEETMHE LB 2 RW - A
BROT BEABR(GEZ R EKRM) 352
WTALBE2EDZRIAR  ARBEETREX
BARDE R o

EECERER
BREBTESRROREBERN 2EBERKXR]
RUATTERER S RE NN RFEREME
B BETNESIRNESENRBRRIEF
LERTEBARCANROMESZOER R
WEBBETHEUSERN S RAQX T REEFHE
RFRBESRENLZH  BTESIMEAEM
EABBESHEER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further
details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share

options outstanding during the year:

BRESE

RABTEMN—EBRESTE (TR £E8
NRANEERREHAEEFLEMNSEE
MERBRBRM - - ZTANFEBC R BRERN
FE30FIKRE o

TEEBREASAARTEZBRENSD

Number of share options

Exercise price
Name or category of  Date of grant of of share At 1 April
participant share options* options** 2010
BRE R=-ZT—FF
S2REEZBYER BARERRB M TEEE mA—H

HK$ per share

ZIRBE T

BREHE
Exercised
during At 31 March Exercise period of
the year 2011 share options
R=ZB——F
FRAETE =ZA=+t—H BRETEER

Executive directors

HITES
Poon Kei Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 6,000,000
EHE —EEC-E
hWA+—H
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000
—EENE
=ZA=+xH

(1,000,000) 5,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
—EEC-F
hWA+—BE
—E-CfF

hB+H

— 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EEWEF
=ZR=txARE
—E-0OF
=B=+EH

9,000,000

(1,000,000) 8,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESTE ®)

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category of  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during At 31 March Exercise period of
participant share options* options** 2010 the year 2011 share options
BRE R-FT-—2F R=-F——F
SEEEZBRER BRERRBE S TREERE*> mA—H FREFTHE =ZHA=t+—H BRETELSR

HK$ per share
FREE T

Executive directors
(continued)

HITES (B)

Poon Kwan Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 3,000,000 (3,000,000) — 11 September 2002 to
(resigned on 1 April 10 September 2012
2011)

Ei90E —BBR_F —EECF
(R=—F——1F hA+—8 hA+—BZE
M A — HB#HE) —E-=F

hA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 (1,500,000) 4,500,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EZENOEF —EEWEF
=ZA=+xA ZA=+REE
—E-ImF
=RA=+4&R
9,000,000 (4,500,000) 4,500,000
Poon Kai Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 6,500,000 (2,500,000) 4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
BEE —BEC-F —EECF
hA+—H hA+—BZ
—E—-—F
hA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENEF —EENF
=A=+xH =ZAZt+RRAE
—ZE—-OF
ZA=+HHAH

9,500,000 (2,500,000) 7,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESTE ®)

Number of share options
BRERE
Exercise price Exercised
Name or category of  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during At 31 March Exercise period of

participant share options* options** 2010 the year 2011 share options
BRE R-B-BF RoB——f
SREELABAER BRERZE A TREEE*> FRAETE =A=+-—H BRETEAR
HK$ per share
HREM T

Executive directors

(continued)

HBTEE(E)
Ting Kit Chung 11 September 2002 4.97 3,000,000 (1,500,000) 1,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
THA = =ET=F
hWA+—H hB+—HZ
—E-=F
hA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEIEF —EEWMEF
=A=+xH =ZA=tRHE
—E-mE
=A=+=EA
9,000,000 (1,500,000) 7,500,000

Poon Ho Wa 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 1 April 2006 to
(appointed on 1 25 March 2014
April 2011)

Bk —EEME SREAE
(R=F——%F =ZA=+7xH mA—-HZE
MA—HEZEE) —E-0OF

=Z=A=+AH

36,700,000 (9,500,000) 27,200,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESTE ®)

Number of share options
BREZB

Exercise price Exercised

Name or category of  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during At 31 March Exercise period of

participant share options* options** 2010 the year 2011 share options
BRE R-B-BF RoB——f
SREELABAER BRERZE A TREEE*> FRAETE =A=+-—H BRETEAR
HK$ per share
HREM T

Independent non-executive directors

BYFHTES
Au Son Yiu 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
oy —EECF —EECF
hWA+—H hB+—HZ
—E-——F
hA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEOEF —ETEWMEF
=A=+5xH =ZA=+xBZE
—E-mE
=Z=BA=+EHH
400,000 — 400,000
Cheng Shu Wing 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 — 200,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
EESES —EEC-F —EEC-F
hWA+—H hB+—HZ
—E -
hA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEEWEF —EEWEF
=A=+7H =ZA=t+txHZE
—E—-0F
=B=+EH
400,000 — 400,000

Wong Tze Kin, David 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
(resigned on 1 25 March 2014
April 2011)

HHEZ —EENMF —EETNF
(R=F——F0HA =ZA=+7xH ZA=Zt+RHE
— HEE) —ET-ImF

=ZRA=+AR

1,000,000 — 1,000,000




Report of the Directors EEEH &

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESTE ®)

Number of share options
BRERE
Exercise price Exercised

Name or category of  Date of grant of of share At 1 April during At 31 March Exercise period of

participant share options* options** 2010 the year 2011 share options
BRE R-B-BF RoB——f
SREELABAER BRERZE A TREEE*> MA—H FRAETE =A=+-—H BRETEAR
HK$ per share
HREM T

Other employees

Hitgg
In aggregate 11 September 2002 4.97 250,000 (150,000) 100,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
&t = =ET=F
hA+—H hB+—HZ
—E--F
hB+H
26 March 2004 5.60 2,540,000 (750,000) 1,790,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
—EENE —EEREF
=A=+xAH mMA—HBZE
—EF—-OF
ZA=+HA
2,790,000 (900,000) 1,890,000
40,490,000 (10,400,000) 30,090,000
Notes: M -

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until * FEIRIEARIERR )3 FH A8 4R H RE 2 1T (ERABE G LE ©

the commencement of the exercise period.

o The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case =~ ** FERBERITEERRA DGR RIREALR S 7ER
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share IR BB I B ] TR o

capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares REEZBRETEAHIRATROHMETS
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was WHEASKREBMS 75T
HK$8.75 per share.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FERRREMBATIRERORERR
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES 7 1 =

At 31 March 2011, the following interests of 5% or more of theissued WRZ-ZZ——F=HA=+—H '  UWTEESAXATC
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests TR A% HU L2 CREB(ESERBE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the {&fI)E336KR EXLH N AR A BRENESR

SFO: fo AN
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARBEBRZHR

Percentage of

Number the Company’s

of ordinary issued share

Capacity shares held capital

HEAFE T

g7 f BREEXERHE RAEHH=

Perfection (PTC) Inc. Trustee 2,3 625,250,104 45.9
ZrEA

Farrow Star Limited Through controlled corporation 1 456,450,000 33.5

EZEEILNF

Directly owned 168,800,104 12.4
HEER

3 625,250,104 45.9

Grant Wizard Corporation Directly owned 1,2 456,450,000 33.5
EEER

FMR LLC Through controlled corporation 79,930,001 5.9

EZEEILNF

Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 4 22,977,200 1.7
e = B
Through controlled corporation 4 41,922,000 3.1

EIZEAQR

64,899,200 4.8
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Capacity
E=87)
Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse
eSS BB
Notes:

The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Farrow Star
Limited.

The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection
(PTC) Inc.

The interests of Farrow Star Limited in the Company were duplicated by

the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection (PTC) Inc.

The interests of Ms. Heung Mi Kuen Miraner in the Company were
duplicated by the interests in the Company held by Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
whose interests are set out in “Directors' interests and short positions in

shares and underlying shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no person, other than

the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the

section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and

underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

TERRREMATABROREBER
RS

REARXAEREZHFRE

Percentage of

Number the Company’s
of share issued share
Note options held capital
EERARERT
Bt BEERESE BRAFHG=E
4 8,000,000 0.6
BEE -
1. Giant Wizard Corporation 55 75 1 8] 2 #&#2 B2 Farrow

Star Limited [Ej#EfF B4 1\ Bl 2 fEm GAHE £

2 Giant Wizard Corporation #5 B X 42 & 2 # # 54
Perfection (PTC) Inc. 5B A1 Al 2 m B HEE -

3 Farrow Star Limited #5B 7K 2 7] Z #& 7= B2 Perfection
(PTQ) Inc. EHEHF B AL Gl 2w GIHHER -

4 BEBELXTIFEARAZEmEEHELLERFBR
RAZER EHES - FHELLERBEARAZE
2 B L2 [EERR D RIBER G < #am K
KR

BREXHEREEN RZB-——-F=ZA=1—
B BEZAL REALCAESHEZCHLARIE
ERRORAERO 2EERARIN  REBEGE
ZRBMERMIEBHRAEZTLERELT RN
HEBERD 2 EERAKR -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below,
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued a letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with relevant
clauses of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions

In accordance with Rules 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, the
Group is required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt
continuing connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.45.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person:
On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled and
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin
Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 April 2009 at the monthly
rent of RMB748,000 per month for the first year, RMB785,000
per month for the second year and RMB824,000 per month for
the third year.

FEREXS
RABRZBYFRTESCR(BEBHAREM
BRABDFFLEHRATETHRAD E14AE
REZEREAFNTEANSERERS  UHRRA
REBEBRETZRUTET:

() BAEEWHEXY

(i) EB-—BREEERRET JBEAEEM
EOREXZNBRRTERGE TREEE
BYE=FNHERNR R

X

(il ZEXZERBEEBEIZNHERNE
T XEBRRATEE LAFEAQF
PRER AV EE RS R 3 o

ERRZBIREMLZ KETHEBE M REER
RAEEZREREX S REATESHAAS
B2 BB %R R ER 5300055 448 £ 47 %
BHETERRFHUNNEEZRIUR SR
FERIESIE74055 [ RIFE B L R A 2 5B B
BXGZREEAMF ITEHBE - ZKEFHAD
ERMERAEBRIE LT RRE14A381FEE
WYX ERBERERXSMFL 2 WE - HHE
EREREHBARER AT o

TERENSEBERSHE

B ETRAEI14AISR14ALIEERTE  AEBEE
FEE VAL KREETEREN B ERERSN
1D A o

(1) E—BEEZEALARBE—YWEEBEEFHT -
N-BEARE=A-+EB AE@EEHEL
EEBRERAATLUED(RATNHIT
EEREERRBWELLEZEER)E
HEXN BUEABMRPEXRESMF
BB T E28255-2865% I K Z B LR &1 &I
B EAREEZERSHEBKNTEN
mCoHEZEZAENA-BEBRH=F
BAHEESEFHARMT48,000T - £ =
FHAARMBISS000TRE=ZFAARY
824,000 7T °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions (continued)

2)

3)

Lease of a property as a director’s quarters from a connected
person:

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins
Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s
quarters of the Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2009 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000 per month.

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected
person:

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 42078,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training
center of the Group for a term of three years commencing from
1 April 2009 at the monthly rent of HK$38,000 per month.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s

total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this

report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011

BEBERS @)
TEBENSEBERSHE(E
(2) E—BEALRE—YEEBEEES

=
ot |

ZENFZA=+THA AEEEY
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REBRREWZEEZERT) RIS
B mYBEAEAEBERL O ERE2R
EEAEB-ESHBEE2A-H=FFR
FOA-HERAB=F SRHESHBY
360,000T °

He

(3) FB—BEALAB-YFEEREF L :

TEEAF=ZA=-+HRB REHEX
BEEEERAD(KERD (BARAF
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VEIEXN MK EEAEESBHARE
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the
executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment; and

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives.

The Board comprises of eight members. The five executive directors
include Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak, Mr. Poon Kwan Chak
(resigned on 1 April 2011) , Mr. Poon Kai Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung.
The three independent non-executive directors include Mr. Au Son
Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1
April 2011). Mr. Poon Bun Chak is the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, Mr. Poon Ho Wa and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin were appointed
as directors of the Company on 1 April 2011 in replacement of Mr.

Poon Kwan Chak and Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, respectively.

The Company has in place clear Board process. Regular Board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
Board papers are served to all directors at least 14 days in advance of
each Board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and decision-
making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss in the
agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are prepared
and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are open for
inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to seek
external professional advice if needed. All directors are kept informed
of the latest update of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business of
the Company and the obligation and responsibility of being a director.

EER

HE

FEEEBRERSBEENDHE
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ERRRBRALEE

ESERBRERRER
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INDEPENDENCE AND QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT B Y HTESHNBIUMRER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors ZAATZFE LHTHBIEII0MNKEWER HE=
("INEDs") on its Board in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing &®HRE=/BYFEHITEE EBIFEHITE
Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and financial ZEHFAERENEBRRIBESR HhBIFEH
experience. The INEDs, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April {T#EEEHE2%E4E (R-_ZZ——F WA — HBTE)
2011) and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin (appointed on 1 April 2011), REMESX4+ (R _E——FNA—HEZT)E
possess professional accounting qualification in full compliance with BEHEEXSHER I ZE2FELTHEEE3.100Q)
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the (W ER -REBZE-_ZEZT——E=A=+—HBI=E
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence forthe E IRV FEHATESC R ETHEBIE3.131

year ended 31 March 2011. EREB I
BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EEZEREEEE;
Attendance of board and committee meetings during the year: FRSHESEREZEESSE N

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

FERHEBTERREY

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Directors Committee Committee Committee
B= ERZEEE FMHZEE REZES
Executive directors BITES
Poon Bun Chak EWE
(Chairman and (EEREFERL
Chief Executive Officer) #ETE) 5/5 N/AZ3E A N/AZ3E A N/AZ3E A
Poon Kei Chak EROE 5/5 N/ATIE N/ATIE N/ATE M
Poon Kwan Chak EE
(resigned on (R=F——4F
1 April 2011) mA— HBEHE) 5/5 N/ATE N/ATE N/ATE
Poon Kai Chak EEE 5/5 N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATEA
Ting Kit Chung THR 5/5 N/ATE 3/3 11
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Au Son Yiu E 2R 5/5 5/5 3/3 11
Cheng Shu Wing R R 5/5 5/5 3/3 11
Wong Tze Kin, David =EHE
(resigned on (R=—ZF——4F
1 April 2011) A — B #E) 5/5 5/5 33 11
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZ8T

The Board has established several board committees to oversee certain EZEBEBCOHRVHBEEEZE S UERAK A F1E5
aspects of the Company'’s affairs. FHESEIE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Committee”)
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The members of the
Committee comprise the three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April 2011), Mr.
Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. During the year, the Committee
was chaired by Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David. On 1 April 2011, Mr. Law
Brian Chung Nin was appointed as independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the Committee in succession of Mr. Wong Tze
Kin, David. Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin are
both qualified accounting professionals.

At the time of establishment, the terms of reference and duties have
been laid down as a guideline for the Committee. The principal duties
of the Committee include:

(@)  monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)  monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the
Group;

()  monitoring the performance of Group’s internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of

the Group.

The Committee held five meetings during the year to review the
followings:

(a) the internal controls and risk management of the Group; and

(b) the financial reporting process and the financial statements of
the Group.

BEREES
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Mr. Au Son Yiu,
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April
2011), and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired
by Mr. Au Son Yiu. On 1 April 2011, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin was
appointed as a member of the committee in succession of Mr. Wong
Tze Kin, David. At the time of establishment, terms of reference and
duties have been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The
committee is responsible for making recommendation on the
Company’s policy and structure for all the remuneration of directors
and other senior management, and reviewing and approving
compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the directors
and other senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the committee will
ensure that no director or any of his/her associate may be involved in
the determination of his/her own remuneration. During the year, the
committee held three meetings to review and approve the
remuneration adjustment and performance bonus of executive
directors and other senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David (resigned on 1 April
2011) and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired
by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. On 1 April 2011, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin
was appointed as a member of the committee in succession of Mr.
Wong Tze Kin, David. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
the recommendation of candidates with appropriate experience and
qualification to become members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,
they have all complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the accounting period covered by the annual
report.

FHESS
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(THE “CODE")

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the code
provisions of the Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year, except for the following deviations:

(1) Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-

election.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with Clause 86(1) of the bye-laws of the Company.

(2)  Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a policy of separating the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Board. The Board
considers the current arrangement can help maintaining a
strong management position and at the same time improving
the communication efficiency. The Board may consider the
separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer

upon the then circumstances.

(3) Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board of the Company has delegated the
duty of attending the annual general meeting to an executive
director of the Company. The chairman considers the executive
director a suitable person for taking up such duty as the
executive director has been serving for similar duties for many
years and he has good understanding of each operating
segment of the Group.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
During the year, fees paid for audit and non-audit services by the

Company were as follows:

Services

AR

Audit services rendered BREE RS
Non-audit services rendered ERMIFEETRE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on pages 38 to 39.

REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy of its
accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and ensure
the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is
responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal controls of
the Company. During the year, the internal audit team, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the internal controls of
each major operating segment of the Company and has reported its
findings to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied
with the effective internal controls of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS
To enhance the communications with shareholders and investors, the

Company has adopted the following communication channels:

(1) meeting shareholders in the annual general meetings to explain
the results of the Company and answer the questions of
shareholders;

(2) disseminating corporate information to shareholders according

to the rules and regulations;

(3) meeting fund managers to promote the business of the
Company; and

(4) publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 40 to 128, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central,

Hong Kong

22 June 2011
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Year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=ZE——F=F=+—HIFEZF

2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
REVENUE A 5 11,861,780 10,537,966
Cost of sales $H £ B A< (7,866,089) (7,016,829)
Gross profit ER 3,995,691 3,521,137
Other income and gains Hibg A R W& 5 187,213 166,624
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEER (2,025,218) (1,811,477)
Administrative expenses THEHR (725,572) (685,172)
Other operating expenses, net HitmEEER F58 (2,357) (5,637)
Finance costs B 7% & A 8 (25,817) (10,394)
Share of profit of an associate, iR EE N aDE A
net of tax BREEFE 55,644 42,270
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt A1 32 Al 6 1,459,584 1,217,351
Income tax expense B 9 (202,030) (116,607)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N F 3t A 1,257,554 1,100,744
Attributable to: "B
Ordinary equity holders of the Company A ARZEBEERFFEE 10 1,133,241 1,007,213
Non-controlling interests EERER 124,313 93,531
1,257,554 1,100,744
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BEALAAEEER 72
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FMEEERERN
THE COMPANY (HK cents) B #Al)
Basic HA 84.3 75.8
Diluted wEz 83.5 75.3

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the

financial statements.

FEEREFBFRENYBBREME IR -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&ZHFER

Year ended 31 March 2011 B2 =—&E——F=H=1+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEE R 1,257,554 1,100,744
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hh2mF B
Exchange differences on translation of BREBIKEEBEEZ
foreign operations BEHEE 132,984 (33,846)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AEEZEFE
THE YEAR “EE 1,390,538 1,066,898
Attributable to: =
Ordinary equity holders of the Company AAREBEZFEE 10 1,270,224 979,883
Non-controlling interests FERER 120,314 87,015
1,390,538 1,066,898




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #ZR3& Bf AR R R

31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Construction in progress
Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Long term rental deposits
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Held-to-maturity investments

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Due to an associate

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

Tax payable

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

*kRBEE
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7E
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BARE -FTER
H A FE W BR K
SEIHNRE
MTEEHEE
RERREEEY

BRBERE

N
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HiENRR KR EFTRE

EEMAas
P& {3 Bt 18
Bt SR AT B K

BRBERE
REBEEFHE

BEERRBEE
ERBEE

M SR 1T E K

i FIE B 18
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EEFH

13
14
15
16
17
18

21
22

20
23
24

19
25
26
23

27

27
28

2011 2010
S i —z-=f
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
2,160,778 2,218,268
169,094 155,170
23,469 23,755
75,991 55,303
33,293 33,293
132,568 120,349
110,804 109,864
2,705,997 2,716,002
2,960,378 2,163,787
1,676,041 1,020,513
667,784 538,101
— 272,888

17,006 17,731
4,232,835 1,526,465
9,554,044 5,539,485
45,707 42,633
2,224,650 1,035,660
487,575 359,288
8,026 3,194
306,821 252,770
3,024,535 1,223,044
6,097,314 2,916,589
3,456,730 2,622,896
6,162,727 5,338,898
563,724 489,744
86,316 56,458
650,040 546,202
5,512,687 4,792,696
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31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BET T
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders KAREZREE
of the Company EihERE
Issued capital 2B&TRAK 29 68,042 66,730
Reserves EE 31(a) 4,756,324 4,159,084
Proposed final dividend BIRARERE 11 408,284 347,042
5,232,650 4,572,856
Non-controlling interests FIERERS 280,037 219,840
Total equity R 5,512,687 4,792,696
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung - )

Director Director BEWE THE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R&#Ex
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREHRERER

Year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=ZE——F=F=+—HIFEZF

2010
—2-2%
HK$'000
BEFT

—E——fF

HK$’000
BETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ®R& i8I &R E

Profit before tax R B Al % A 1,459,584 1,217,351
Adjustments for: TE
Finance costs B ER 8 25,817 10,394
Share of profit of an associate, FEAREEE D RDER
net of tax RRE % FRE (55,644) (42,270)
Interest income FEUW A 5 (76,063) (25,670)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange  JNEfT4A €@ I A
derivative financial instruments AABEWRRFE 5 (24,357) (19,886)
Net fair value gains on investment BEWMEIAR
properties W EE 56 (9,800) (27,252)
Depreciation e 6 317,291 320,988

Recognition of prepaid land lease FENLHAER
payments i 6 584 665
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYE BEKRSKE

property, plant and equipment BHE (W) BB 6 (1,737) 1,688
Provision/(write-back of provision) RREFEEEE
for slow-moving inventories (EHEREE) 6 54,684 (8,047)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) EWRAEE,
of trade receivables CRUE R =) 6 1 (1,693)
1,690,360 1,426,268
Increase in inventories FEEM (851,275) (499,645)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FE UK BR FR K FE UK 45 48 0 (655,529) (99,309)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and EARE -FTEk
other receivables H b FE U BR TR A0 (129,683) (66,755)
Increase in an amount due to an associate & {5 B & A T 42 40 3,074 27,402
Increase in trade and bills payables ENERNENEEEM 1,188,990 77,144
Increase in other payables and HMESIRA K EST
accrued liabilities & &M 128,287 56,215
Cash generated from operations KEFREBRE 1,374,224 921,320
Profits taxes paid 2N REH (118,121) (124,386)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEMBRESRANFE 1,256,103 796,934
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFTEBHREKE
Interest received 2R E 76,063 25,670
Proceeds from disposal of derivative HESTEemIT A
financial instruments A 29,914 35,081
Dividends received from an associate EWHEEATRE 50,000 38,000
Purchases of items of property, plantand HBEY% BER
equipment HEER 13 (171,572) (142,907)
Additions to construction in progress REEEIR 16 (17,697) (31,074)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BEEZEIHNWIIRE — (481,780)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BOFZIHN
investments ®BE 272,888 299,935
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE BER
property, plant and equipment HREEE WA 3,679 16,981



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZRSHREHRER

Increase in long term rental deposits
Increase in time deposits with original
maturity over three months when

acquired
Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of new shares
Repurchase of shares
New interest-bearing bank borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing
bank borrowings
Interest paid
Dividends paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity within three months
when acquired

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity over three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of
financial position
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity over three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows

Year ended 31 March 2011 &
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2011 2010
—E——F

HK$’000
BETTT

—2-2%
HK$'000
BEFT

(940) (15,885)

(2,513,824) (252,076)
(60,880) —
(2,332,369) (508,055)
53,106 37,769
(1,242) —
8,516,117 6,652,521
(6,640,646) (5,845,577)
(25,817) (10,394)
(657,867) (588,228)
1,243,651 246,091
167,385 534,970
1,274,389 800,800
25,161 (61,381)
1,466,935 1,274,389
487,037 438,010
979,898 836,379
2,765,900 252,076
4,232,835 1,526,465
(2,765,900) (252,076)
1,466,935 1,274,389




Company Statement of Financial Position 2 &) 8 #&ARk R &

31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 32 822,414 899,977
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments AR E 149 397
Dividends receivable FEW R B 410,000 200,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRBEEZEEY 24 162 951
Total current assets BRBEE 410,311 201,348
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities EstaE 534 1,971
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITER 27 76,667 161,333
Total current liabilities BWRBERE 77,201 163,304
Net current assets MEEEFHE 333,110 38,044
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABDEE 1,155,524 938,021
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ESRITER 27 — 76,667
Net assets EEFHE 1,155,524 861,354
EQUITY Em
Issued capital 28T IRAK 29 68,042 66,730
Reserves #& 31(b) 679,198 447,582
Proposed final dividend BIRKERKE 11 408,284 347,042
Total equity RS 1,155,524 861,354
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE

Director Director BWE THRE



2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&R&®R Kz

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

3 Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory;

o Provision of franchise services; and

o Provision of repair and maintenance services for motor
vehicles.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain leasehold land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment, and derivative financial instruments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

2.1

31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bk K5

31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 EEEXREFER (#)
Basis of consolidation (continued) AR (HE)

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010 (continued)
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been
applied on a prospective basis. The following differences,
however, are carried forward in certain instances from the

previous basis of consolidation:

3 Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil.
Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent,
unless the non-controlling interest had a binding
obligation to cover these. Losses prior to 1 April 2010 were
not reallocated between non-controlling interest and the
parent shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of net asset
value at the date control was lost. The carrying amount of
such investment at 1 April 2010 has not been restated.
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2.2 CHANGES

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&R&®R Kz

DISCLOSURES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HKFRS 5 Amendments
included in
Improvements
to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

HK Interpretation 4
Amendment

HK Interpretation 5

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

Amendments to HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations
— Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in May 2009

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4
Leases — Determination of the
Length of Lease Term in respect
of Hong Kong Land Leases

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bk K5

31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised), and amendments to HKAS
7 and HKAS 17 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs

are as follows:

(@) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and HKAS 27
(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that affect the
initial measurement of non-controlling interests, the
accounting for transaction costs, the initial recognition
and subsequent measurement of a contingent
consideration and business combinations achieved in
stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the period that an
acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted
for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will
have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain
or loss. Furthermore, the revised standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as
the loss of control of a subsidiary. Consequential
amendments were made to various standards, including,
but not limited to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS
12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards are
applied prospectively and affect the accounting of
acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with non-

controlling interests after 1 April 2010.
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2.2

2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&R&®R Kz

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments results in changes
in accounting policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

° HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the
statement of financial position can be classified as a
cashflow from investing activities.

. HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance on
classifying land as a lease. As a result, leases of land
should be classified as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with the general guidance in
HKAS 17.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment = Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS
7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters’

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKAS 12 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax : Recovery of

Underlying Assets?
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement ?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments’

31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010,
whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS
34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the progress of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRS, upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company'’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
an associate is included in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s investment
in an associate is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associate is eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and an
associate represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained
profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill
arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
retained profits in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
retained profits and is not recognised in the income statement
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill relates is
disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

() the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Company;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
leasehold land and buildings revaluation reserve and remains
there until the subsequent disposal or retirement of the
property, whereby that from the revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease terms
Plant and machinery 10-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life of a
trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessory, cost
is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal or to make the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is

negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivables, held-to-maturity investments, other
receivables, long term rental deposits and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

3 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;

and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
due to an associate, other payables, derivative financial
instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted

cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEES€:HFENHME (%)
(continued)
Income tax RBH

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

3 where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

3 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the subsidy on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, time
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are not
restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have
been provided;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that
had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after
1 April 2005.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the

income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could material affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the Group
determines whether trademarks are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are related.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”, the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite
useful lives of the trademarks.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature, condition and location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iii) independent valuations.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of the inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables

Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on the assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment allowances
requires management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying values of the receivables and impairment or its reversal

in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn
segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory segment; and

() the "others” segment principally comprises the provision
of motor vehicles repair and maintenance services, and
the provision of franchise services.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that interest income and finance costs are

excluded from such measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ZEIBEH @)

Segment assets exclude time deposits and interest in associate as PHEETEBETH T? EZ REE LR Z

these assets are managed on a group basis. Ba NZSEENREEREREESE .

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, PHEEBETBEWERTER ENHBE

tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are RELEREBEERS NZSEENRERE

managed on a group basis. BEEEE.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference (B P EBCHEERERIGCEEBS

to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the BEFE=-FEoERMEBEEKITE -

then prevailing market prices.

(@) The following tables present revenue, profit and certain @) TRAXEHEBZE=-Z——=A
assets, liabilities and expenditures information of the =+-—-HBR=-E-ZFEE=ZA=1+-—
Group for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March HLEFEZEBDERA - HER K EP
2010: NEE BERIHER:

Group £

Production, Retailing and

dyeing and sale of distribution of casual

knitted fabricand yarn ~ apparel and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HERREL 2 ERR &2
EHERESR ZERDH Hify e &E
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
S%8--% -%-%F -%--F "F-%F -B--F "F-TF -%--F "FT-%TF “F--F -F-%F
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BETrn EETr BEFr BRI EETr  EETrn BT BETn  EETn BT

Segment revenue: AEWA
Sales to external EFHR
customers EF 5,971,395  5539,504 5,856,617 4,959,742 33,768 38,720 — — 11,861,780 10,537,966
Intersegment sales PEEZHE — - — — 4,981 4,788 (4,981) (4,788) — —
Other revenue HiA 95,637 62,369 (3,559) 39,623 28,900 48,546 (9,828) (9,584) 111,150 140,954
Total L 6,067,032 5601873 5,853,058 4,999,365 67,649 92,054 (14,809) (14,372) 11,972,930 10,678,920
Segment results PEEE 908,417 852,824 407,130 253,080 38,147 58,590 — (4,689) 1,353,694 1,159,805
Interest income FEWA 76,063 25,670
Finance costs BHER (25,817) (10,394)
Share of profit EiEEENT
of an associate, wH BRE%
net of tax B 55,644 42,270
Profit before tax BB AR 1,459,584 1,217,351
Income tax expense BB (202,030)  (116,607)

Profit for the year REERR 1,257,554 1,100,744



Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M5

31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEIEER @
Group £5

Production, Retailing and

dyeing and sale of distribution of casual

knitted fabricand yarn  apparel and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HETRRYZ ERR 2
EHRER ZERIH ity Eaf ge
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
ZB-—-% “2-%ZF “%--§ “T-%F ZB--F “Z-%F “B--f “F-%F ZB--F “EB-Zf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BT EEFr BEFr BEFr BETn BETn EBETrn BEFrn BETr  BETn

Assets and liabilities: BERER:
Segment assets TEEE 6,682,267 5465324 2,311,994 1,721,423 53,741 212,580 (666,327)  (352,644) 8,381,675 7,046,683
Investment in an associate ~ REfE AR 2 RE 132,568 120,349
Unallocated assets AIBREE 3,745,798 1,088,455
Total assets BEE 12,260,041 8,255,487
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,808,213 729,794 1,325,144 1,008,065 66,837 71,159 (424,269)  (368,243) 2,775,925 1,440,775
Unallocated liabilities APBREE 3,971,429 2,022,016
Total liabilities Baf 6,747,354 3,462,791
Other segment HtHEEH
information:
Depreciation and ER
amortisation %21 228,722 221,415 87,512 98,569 1,641 1,669 — — 317,875 321,653
Capital expenditure BERHELH 80,068 120,536 109,188 53,445 13 — - — 189,269 173,981
Other non-cash HtFRext/
expenses/(income) (W) 32,706 (22,600) 20,187 14,205 55 343 — — 52,948 (8,052)
Fair value gains on RENENRE

investment properties W - — - — 9,800 27,252 — - 9,800 27,252
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

4.
Geographical information
The following table presents geographical revenue and

non-current assets information of the Group for the years
ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010:

31 March 2011 = &——F=H=+—H
EEIEER @)

i35 2 38

TRAXEEBE=-Z——F=A
=t+-BRZ-ZFE-ZFF=ZA=1-—
FLEFEZHBEBARFRBDERE

(b)

HH
Group &
USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
% PE AR BE ) Hib e &4
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
“E--f Z2-%F "%--F “2-%F “%--F -2-%F “§-—-F TE Z8--F “3-%3F -8--F “Z-%% -%--F “%¥-%%
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI BEFT E¥Tn BETr BT BETr EMTr BRI BEFR BRI BETR BT BETT BETR
(i) Revenue from i) SHREFWA
external customers
Segment revenue: LN
Sales to external EFNF
customers £F 4,301,085 4039293 5218586 4,223,709 592,281 819,049 750,563 625766 999,265 830,149 - — 11,861,780 10,537,966
(i) Non-currentassets: (i) JREEE:
Non-current assets ERBEE - — 2,367,766 2,377,921 - - 579,114 410,611 110,990 89,011  (351,873)  (161,541) 2,705,997 2,716,002

The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets
information are based on the locations of the markets and
assets, respectively.

() Information about a major customer

No single external customer contributes more than 10%

to the Group'’s revenue during the year.

EEBBRARERBEEENT
DRIRENEREE 2R EMDE -

—ZFXEEFzER
TER BEE-HREFHERA(L
AEBEHHWA10% U L o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net

WA - E Al AR s

WA FRAEEMEXRE EHBRERER
EEMNARCHEREFE  MRAERS
MEENSTFREERENKA -

invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; the value of services rendered and franchise

and royalty income.

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA BB ARKRESFTWT

Group
&=
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Revenue: WA
Sale of goods HEEm 11,753,154 10,439,321
Rendering of services 1= BR 7% 95,594 83,610
Franchise and royalty income 4hEr R B E R UL A 13,032 15,035
11,861,780 10,537,966
Other income and gains: HiW AR K :
Interest income FE WA 76,063 25,670
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange SMESTESRBIA
derivative financial instruments (note 23) NREWRRFE (FiE23) 24,357 19,886
Gross rental income on REWMEHRS WA
investment properties #zs 7,881 8,707
Compensation from landlord for HEFREBELLAEY
early termination of leasing mES
agreements BE{E — 9,260
Compensation from suppliers for BAXEESHERS
defective goods B {E 10,765 9,362
Net fair value gains on investment REWMELR
properties (note 14) W iR F R (B2 14) 9,800 27,252
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BERRE
plant and equipment 1H B W= 1,737 —
Scrap sales BRI E 2,012 1,262
Government subsidies B 78 Bh K 14,884 19,287
Sundry income Ml A 39,714 45,938

187,213 166,624
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBANZR
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZzBRBAERNE MR (L) :
(crediting):
Group
=3
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEF T BT T
Cost of inventories sold* 2 EEY Z A 7,866,089 7,016,829
Depreciation E 13 317,291 320,988
Recognition of prepaid land lease B tHBEERZ
payments R 15 584 665

Employee benefits expenses, including EE&®F X - 24F

directors’ remuneration (note 7): EEME (HEFE7):
Wages, salaries and other allowances T & - #<$ &k HAthiE0h 1,365,150 1,216,212
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERGTE
contributions HE 9,621 10,589
1,374,771 1,226,801
Minimum lease payments under REHET 2R
operating leases in respect of land EFREE:
and buildings EHA 582,298 564,462
Contingent rents under operating KEHRET2HA
leases HE 575,783 454,358
Minimum lease payments under REHETZHRER
operating leases in respect of plant BHREES
and machinery ZH 7,834 7,685
Auditors’ remuneration B & 2,854 2,470
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME BER
property, plant and equipment REER (RF) B (1,737) 1,688
Net foreign exchange gains, excluding [E 5 I8 %5 848 - TR1E
net fair value gains on foreign SMEE BT
exchange derivative financial EMIT A
instruments Wi F 5 (89,635) (57,333)
Gross rental income on REVMEHSWA
investment properties g (7,881) (8,707)
Less: Outgoings A BX 1,756 1,120
Net rental income HEWAFE (6,125) (7,587)
Provision/(write-back of provision) for R#&FEXEME
slow-moving inventories (ZEEREE) 54,684 (8,047)
Net fair value gains on investment REMEQNE
properties Wi B8 14 (9,800) (27,252)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) F& U B FURE,
of trade receivables CRIERE) 22 1 (1,693)
# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$596,229,000 (2010: # EEEYZzH AP EIEBEHE THK - #T
HK$522,830,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation, minimum E KREHETZRIEHSEARREFE
lease payments under operating leases and provision/write-back of Al EERE] B 596229000 (—ZFE—F
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included in F 1 JBE522830000T) N R L& EE R
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these BRI R o

types of expenses.
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees: weE:
Executive directors HITESE

Independent non-executive directors I FHITES

Other emoluments: HitB & :
Executive directors: HITES !
Salaries, allowances and Fe 2ZMERIRD
benefits in kind mA
Performance related bonuses* KRB HIEAL>
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEFIEHE
contributions =K
Long service payment on B IR T R
retirement R % &
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to

discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain

percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.

ExMERTUBRESHEMESR

BBMIHMESZLTRAREEBEARES
161F REEESHES2REWNT ¢

Group

%M
2011 2010
—g--%  =T-%F
HK$'000 HK$000
EEFT BT

50 50

930 870

980 920
37,891 36,369
65,100 71,200
54 60

213 —
103,258 107,629
104,238 108,549

* ARABITESFEZE THEBLEEETHD
LERIBR B B FIE BB 1B AT R B AITEAT ©
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 7. EBEE=EMEe R ANV ESTMES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REREZNFBEBILFHTESZ
during the year were as follows: BEMT :
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Au Son Yiu B &R 310 290
Cheng Shu Wing B 481 28 310 290
Wong Tze Kin, David EEHE(R=-E——F
(resigned on 1 April 2011) M A — HBFHE) 310 290
930 870
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER TE(ZE—ZFF HE)OB8
independent non-executive directors during the year VHHTESINEHMEE -
(2010: nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Retirement  Long service
and benefits in related benefit scheme payment on Total
kind bonuses  contributions retirement  remuneration

R 4K

#& RER e RER EE3) e

g  FREEA HATA SEMR REBRES B
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

2011 —E--F
Poon Bun Chak EWE 10 12,212 34,823 12 - 47,057
Poon Kei Chak BRE 10 8,307 8,936 12 — 17,265
Poon Kwan Chak (resigned  E$58 (R=F——4%
on 1 April 2011) 71— H#F) 10 5,266 4,000 6 213 9,495
Poon Kai Chak BEE 10 6,060 8,836 12 — 14,918
Ting it Chung THa 10 6,046 8,505 12 - 14,573
50 37,891 65,100 54 213 103,308
2010 —E-EF
Poon Bun Chak &R 10 11,684 35,600 12 — 47,306
Poon Kei Chak BRE 10 8,061 8,900 12 — 16,983
Poon Kwan Chak (resigned ~ &#2 (KR -F——4
on 1 April 2011) M A —HEE) 10 5,064 8,900 12 — 13,986
Poon Kai Chak EEE 10 5818 8,900 12 — 14,740
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 5,742 8,900 12 — 14,664
50 36,369 71,200 60 — 107,679
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or WEREERFARESBDERETMAES
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. M= HE o
The five highest paid individuals employed by the Group during AU AEEESFHALIREAZRE
the year were all directors, details of whose remuneration are = HEMBAHAS I E -

set out above. @
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEA
Group
£
2011 2010
—e-—¢ e
HK$°000 HK$°000
B F T B F T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts BEREFAZHBEEN
wholly repayable within five years BITERREXFE 25,817 10,394
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. HiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBANEHROCERFEFARET BRI 245
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in FEE B SR LB B165% (=2 F —F F .
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5%) IR EFB - EHMM BN ER RS
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in MIE DIREAEBXBEER T LRk
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. E2HTHRESE o

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B F T
Group: £H

Hong Kong and mainland China taxes: BEBRPBEARERE:
Current year provision INEEEE 171,822 87,969
Under/(over)provision in prior years AFEBRETR(B5) 350 (1,590)
Deferred tax (note 28) IE AE I8 (B 2F 28) 29,858 30,228

Tax charge for the year REEFIE 202,030 116,607
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group

31 March 2011 =F——#=A=+—H

BiIE ()
BREAAARRAMBARNFEAERE
Z R BAT SR R H R E B R & 2 BE
TEAFERERGOT

%8

2011
—_E——F

2010
-5
HK$°000
BT T

HK$°000
BETFT

Profit before tax R %1 A1 3% A 1,459,584 1,217,351
Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable BREBAEEEBRAMN RN Z

to profits in the jurisdictions MRFTENW

concerned 418 186,864 65,424
Adjustments in respect of current MEEFENSHHE

tax of previous years EEES 350 (1,590)
Profits attributable to an associate AR EEE D BRI (11,613) (8,509)
Income not subject to tax BAMB 2 WA (34,619) (5,177)
Expenses not deductible for tax FAEBL IR HIR < & A 28,657 27,304
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on A £ B P B Y B ) AT

the distributable profits of the DIKEF I 10% FEINFHEH

Group's PRC subsidiaries (note 28) S8 (ffzt28) 26,699 24,393
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on RMEBEZRBERIELSIE

tax losses =93 8,793 17,514
Tax losses utilised from previous EEABRAHE2FHIE

periods &8 (2,987) (892)
Others Hith (114) (1,860)
Tax charge for the year REEFIE 202,030 116,607

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to
HK$14,741,000 (2010: HK$9,307,000) is included in “Share of
profit of an associate, net of tax” in the consolidated income

statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a
profit of HK$757,773,000 (2010: HK$196,303,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 31(b)).

10.

R E QAT BIE A B 14,741,000t (=
B ,%M93070007E)EE—M?.@%%J
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Mo
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1.

12.

DIVIDENDS

11.

Interim of HK23.0 cents AR AR B 23,011
(2010: HK22.0 cents) per share (ZZ—ZF  BU22.010)
Proposed final of HK30.0 cents KR 23 2 AR 7B 15 30.01
(2010: HK26.0 cents) per share (ZZ—ZF : BH26.01L)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2011 and 31 March 2010 have been calculated as follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during that year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2011 is based on the profit for that
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during that year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued
at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share

options into ordinary shares during that year.

12.

=)
2011 2010
—g—-% —®-®2%
HK$000 HK$000
BEF T BT
310,825 292,242
408,284 347,042
719,109 639,284

AEERRZAAREAGSELOARRR
MERTHRRAFRGLEB -

BEAARERERMEESR
2R
—E-—F=ZRA=+—HRZE—ZF=
B=+-BLEEZEARBEECER
BRFENT

(a) EXEREF
EXBREBANNDEAQCIDEEES
FEERGEZEFERNRRZER
ERTEERZMEFHREFE -

(b) BEESREAN
BE-ZEZ-——F=ZA=+—-HB1L*HE
ENBEEERBADRZFEZ
ARAAEBRGMEERLEZEE
EAE - ARTEFRCBITESE
BemMEFHBRBEDIARGTERER
BRBAZRE RERERZER
LBETEMEBREAZTBERY
IFEF IR & -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. S EA R IETBESFMEEER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B R @)
(continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are based EXAGEBER2SREBNFTENT :

on the following:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T B F T
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to ordinary KAREBERFEE
equity holders of the Company, FE{REF - BE
used in the basic earnings STEEAR
per share calculation BREAER 1,133,241 1,007,213

Number of shares

igrig 4=
2011
—E——fF
Shares IR 47
Weighted average number of shares REAEERGRERNZ
in issue during the year used in the FREBFTRO MEFY
basic earnings per share calculation B% & 1,343,596,236 1,328,681,142
Effect of dilution — weighted average BECEE NETHEER
number of ordinary shares: BRE
Share options B R fE 14,201,889 8,866,502
Weighted average number of shares REFEHEREREN
in issue during the year used in the FREBITRMD MNE

diluted earnings per share calculation FEHRE 1,357,798,125 1,337,547,644
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31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

31 March 2011 —E2——%=A=+—H
At 1 April 2010: NZE—TF
mA—HA:
Cost or valuation ARG B

Accumulated depreciation ES g

Net carrying amount IREFE
At 1 April 2010, net of R-ZE-—ZFWMA—H "
accumulated depreciation CHBRETITE
Additions nE
Disposals HE
Depreciation provided FRITE
during the year i

Foreign exchange adjustments ¥h [ 33 2

At 31 March 2011, net of HNZE——4F

accumulated =A=+-—8"
depreciation EMRATIFE
At 31 March 2011: R-—ZE——F
=R=+—-H:
Cost or valuation ARG E

Accumulated depreciation =i
Net carrying amount BREFE

Analysis of cost or valuation: BRSNS & B 2 4 :

At cost jo%%N
At 31 March 1992 R—hh=—%F
valuation ZA=+—HfE

Leasehold
land and

buildings

et
kigs
HK$000

BETFT

13.

Leasehold

improvements

HE
BFEE
HK$'000

BT T

M- BERRE

%8

Plant and

machinery

2
RH
HK$000

BETFT

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
BH-HE
RBAZE
BB
HK$000

BEFT

Motor
vehicles
and yacht

AE
& 5 A
HK$000

BEFT

At
HK$000

BEFT

1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
(387,117) (294,771)  (1,541,094) (178,626) (66,524)  (2,468,132)
919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
— 94,996 55,910 14,540 6,126 171,572

(23) (132) (330) (1,457) — (1,942)
(52,303) (62,390) (170,546) (20,490) (11,562) (317,291)
35,362 5,742 46,978 1,148 941 90,171
902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
1,357,420 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751
(455,303) (352,694) (1,763,011) (203,536) (76,429)  (2,850,973)
902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
1,343,818 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 4,998,149
13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,357,420 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ BERSZE@
Group £5

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and office vehicles

buildings improvements machinery equipment and yacht

Bl £E
HELH HE BE REAE RE
kEgF BFEEE R B4 i &&t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT EB¥FrT BEFr BEEFrT EBETFrn
31 March 2010 —E-ZF=ZHA=+—H
At 1 April 2009: R-ZEZEAFEMA—A:
Cost or valuation A G B 1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
Accumulated depreciation R &3 B (339,359) (445,009) (1,370,969)  (164,887)  (54,979) (2,375,203)
Net carrying amount REFE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
At 1 April 2009, net of RZZFZAFMA—H -
accumulated depreciation BB EiITE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
Additions B 5,380 40,683 77,869 10,624 8351 142,907
Disposals HE (3,848) (2,210) (6,183) (1,745) (835)  (14,821)
Depreciation provided FRITE
during the year 15 (50,290) (71,822)  (164,790) (23,345) (10,741)  (320,988)
Transfers from construction R7EZE T EREA
in progress (note 16) (MtzE16) 86,731 — 8,574 — — 95,305
Transfer to investment BEREYE
properties (note 14) (KtEt14) (2,948) — — — — (2,948)
Foreign exchange INEE FE
adjustments 4,454 1,507 3,665 318 77 10,021
At 31 March 2010, netof RZ-ZE—ZF
accumulated =ZA=+—8"
depreciation ENREITE 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
At 31 March 2010: R-z-—=&
=B=+-—8:
Cost or valuation RAR G E 1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE (387,117) (294,771) (1,541,094) (178,626)  (66,524) (2,468,132)
Net carrying amount REEE 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268

Analysis of cost or valuation: B 78 5§ & {8 2 #f :

At cost AR 1,292,596 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,672,798
At 31 March 1992 R—hhZ=—F
valuation =ZA=t+—RHA#E 13,602 — — — — 13,602

1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
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31 March 2011 =&——#=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. ¥ BERRKREm®E)

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings at 31 March
2011 is as follows:

1992
Professional
valuation
—hh=%
BEXfhE
HK$’000
BET T

Medium term leasehold land A& i = & HA

HK$°000
BEFT

R-ZB-——F=A=+—-HZHEE+HE
BEIMOT :

1992
Professional
valuation Cost Total
—Ah=%F
HEME
HK$’000

BETFT

Cost Total

s
= A

E N

RAE
HK$°000

BEFT

Att
HK$000

BT

HK$°000
BEFT

and buildings situated in HELHR
Hong Kong gF 13,602 98,853 112,455 13,602 98,853 112,455
Medium term leasehold land I RE# U2
and buildings hHIEE
situated outside TR
Hong Kong i ES — 1,244,965 1,244,965 — 1,193,743 1,193,743
13,602 1,343,818 1,357,420 13,602 1,292,596 1,306,198

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings had been carried out as the Group
has relied upon the exemption granted under the transitional
provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and
equipment”, from the requirement to carry out future
revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were
stated at valuation at that time. Had such leasehold land and
buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$5,767,000 (2010: HK$6,203,000).

In the prior year, certain leasehold land and buildings
situated in Hong Kong occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property became an investment property during that
year. The difference at the date of transfer between the
carrying value and the fair value of the property of
HK$1,469,000 was accounted for as a revaluation and had
been credited to the asset revaluation reserve in that year.

HOFHEAELHEEFER-NWAZHF
EBLEXFEMETEL - AKEBE -
Ah=FE TEHEBELREFE
E-SEHMGE BREBSFTERSE 6
ST BB KRR IES0AR B IE M 1%
X HRAHBUERMEEARNYE
BERRBEEFRRERBEEM - HZE
HETHREFRELRABRZFFTES
IR HIRESREEN R BYS5,767,000T (=
ZT—FF 1 8%6,203,0007T) °

RUBEE  BHUREEEEAEEMUE
FERAMERREANEELI HRETE
BEREVE - ZEYERERANEE
BEED R ER S H1,469,000 T =58 - ©1F
BEMAR TRZFEETCHREEER
T o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at beginning of year # £ ¥ BRE{&
DAEFHEN RS FHE

Net gain from fair value adjustments

(note 6) (Mtate)
Transfer from property, plant and B BMEKLKRE
equipment (note 13) B (Mt 13)
Foreign exchange adjustments BN
Carrying amount at end of year RERKEE

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$115,600,000 (2010: HK$104,700,000) and HK$53,494,000
(2010: HK$50,470,000) are situated in Hong Kong and Taiwan,
respectively. All investment properties are held under medium
term leases. The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$115,600,000 were revalued on 31 March 2011 by the
directors with reference to the current prices of similar
properties in an active market at nearby locations adjusted to
reflect those differences; as well as recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. The investment
properties with carrying value of HK$53,494,000 were revalued
on 31 March 2011 by Colliers Internationals, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use
basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are

included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

31 March 2011 =F——#=A=+—H

14. BEYWHE

Group
5

2011 2010
=E——F —E-BF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETTT B F T
155,170 120,199
9,800 27,252
— 4,417
4,124 3,302
169,094 155,170

BRI {E A 8 %5 115,600,000t (ZE —Z & :
7 % 104,700,000 7T ) & 7% % 53,494,000 T
(ZZ—F 5 :j8%50,470,0007T) WIRE Y
7R REBRAE REWED DR
FHEIFRAIEE - BREE A % % 115,600,000
TR EMETBHEESZEIERTS
PHEBELUYENRER - ——F
A=+ -BFHEGURBREEZR;
BB ERNmEPRIEYENER
RRE FHARURBREIMBARS B H
RBEEERNRE R_Z——F=A=
+— B BRE{EAHB53,494,000 T IR E
MERBREEEERZBELANEME HE
BABELEMBESHA RABTS
FEEABREERTEGH - REWEDU
KEHNBETFE=F FHAEREANRT K
K HEE35() ©
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. EFL#HBAER
Group
-
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year R E ¥ EEE 24,420 25,086
Recognised during the year (note 6) F R (f:L6) (584) (665)
Exchange realignment BE % 2 306 1)
Carrying amount at end of year RERKEE 24,142 24,420
Current portion included in TENERD B IE A FEAT RRE
prepayments, deposits and e Rk HMER
other receivables BRRA (673) (665)
Non-current portion FEREE D 23,469 23,755
The above leasehold lands are all held under medium term DNEzHEL AP BHBANBEERNUR
leases and are situated outside Hong Kong. BB o
16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIRE
Group
&=
2011 2010
—EB—-F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At beginning of year REFD 55,303 119,283
Additions wE 17,697 31,074
Transfer to property, plant and BAME - BERRE
equipment (note 13) (BtEF13) — (95,305)
Foreign exchange adjustments INE BB 2,991 251
At end of year RER 75,991 55,303
17. TRADEMARKS 17. B

Group
el
2011

—E——F
HK$°000
BT

Cost and carrying amount at RERKER
end of year BREE 33,293

2010
—E-ZF
HK$000
BT T

33,293
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Particulars of

issued shares held

FEEHRT
RANE

18.

EiEEEFHR

Place of incorporation
and operations

FEM AR L e St B

31 March 2011 =F——#=A=+—H

RBEERTZ2RE

Group
&5
2011

2010
—z-=5
HK$°000
BT T

—E——F
HK$°000
BETT

132,568 120,349

BEADZENMT :

Percentage of ownership
interest attributable to  Principal
the Group
AEBEMLES

BHintk

activity

Megawell Industrial Limited

("Megawell”) HK$1 each
BEHBBRAA EREBR
(Mg&ED BT

Ordinary shares of

Hong Kong/Mainland China
and Vietnam

BB HEKE
R HirE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of Megawell extracted from its financial statements:

Assets
Liabilities
Revenues

Profit after tax

19. DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

BE
&E
L'ON
BB IEF

19.

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on agreed credit terms.

50 Manufacture of
garments

50 R(IRERE

TREIRBBREVBRR U BERHR

==}
z= -

Group
&H
2011 2010
=% —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BT
672,642 575,319
390,116 315,172
1,215,533 1,277,204
122,380 75,045
ENBE QT
ENBEARRRDEERR EFNERE
RIGETEREVER ©
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20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

21.

Listed investments in elsewhere,

REfMBE ELTHRE

at amortised cost ZE#E R A
Unlisted investments, FETHRE  ZHEHHE
at amortised cost R AR

At 31 March 2010, the investments had an aggregate nominal
value of HK$272,079,000, bore interest ranging from 0.35% to
4.70% per annum. The investments matured during the year.
The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity investments had
been computed as the amount initially recognised minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest rate method of any difference
between the initially recognised amount and the maturity
amount. At the end of the reporting period, the fair value of
the held-to-maturity investments were not materially different
from their carrying amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments were either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials BR
Work in progress ER @
Finished goods SR

20.

21.

B IR MR

BEIHHIRE
Group
=m

2011 2010
g% —E-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETTT BETF T
— 174,614
— 98,274
— 272,888

R-ZE-ZSF=ZF=+—B ZRENAE
STEEAB 272,079,000 T FERNF
035% F4.70% 2 YERAEREH -
BEIASBNBRECCHBERANTEDR
VNEEIANSEREZCHEHENES BN
FRBEFEAERANR LB REIRSHE
HEASECEENEHEETE-
RBEEHR BFEZIHENREN A AEH
HEEAEIESAER

ZEEEHHMNREGERNRRE - B
REZIFPNRETNEMEEHTEIE
BN ERRER -

FE
Group
%M
2011 2010
—E2-—-% —2-%5
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BEF T
1,676,013 1,225,712
38,027 87,818
1,246,338 850,257
2,960,378 2,163,787
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. ERERRKEREE
Group
-
2011 2010
—EB——F —EB-BF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Trade receivables FE R BR X 593,414 582,876
Bills receivable FEWEE 1,082,640 437,649
1,676,054 1,020,525
Impairment WA (13) (12)
1,676,041 1,020,513
Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range from AEBEFFERIAIARBRE|IFIBE
“cash before delivery” to “within 90 days from the date of HEEMIORRN] HPFBEXRTHEUEH
invoice”. A significant portion of the customers trade with the MEREFETRZ - AEBHERFIE
Group under documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to ER—EREEEHEUEEEERRE-
maintain strict credit control on its outstanding receivables and HRAEERKEREERZEF Bt
has a policy to manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade AEBYREANEESPRAR - EWER
receivables relate to a large number of customers, there is no MBIEME -

significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RBEHR REZAHRNBREESEYE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of 13,000T (=& —ZF & : B #12,0007T) %
impairment of HK$13,000 (2010: HK$12,000), is as follows: ZEWRRERBR MU T -
Group
&5
2011 2010
—E——F —E-BF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Within 90 days 0HRK 584,173 575,502
Over 90 days 90H M £ 9,228 7,362

593,401 582,864
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22.

Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

At beginning of year READ

Impairment/(write-back of impairment)  FEUWBRFURE, CR{ER @)
of trade receivables (note 6) (Kr&te)

At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$13,000 (2010: HK$12,000) with a carrying
amount of HK$13,000 (2010: HK$12,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in
default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not hold
any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired WHBEATEERE
Within 90 days past due HEHEI90H K
Over 90 days past due BHI90 A UL £

EBWERR R EWERE ®)
EWEZRERENEBHMT :

Group
=m

2011 2010
—g--% —=-%%
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETF T
12 1,705
1 (1,693)
13 12

ELMERERFHERERZEHERZD
1B FE UK BR 3K S 8 513,000 (= & —
TF B ¥12,0007T) ZEEWERRVER
HEEA13,000T (= —ZF 1 B%12,000
) o ZLEBEAEREBEERER SR TE
THRRBANEFE AEELENZS
HREFETMNEASIIEMREAEANR

i o

BEABRERBECERERERAREREE 2
BREAMOT :

Group
m

2011 2010
—g--% —=-%%
HK$’'000 HK$000
B F T B F T
1,553,389 859,289
90,894 154,030
31,758 7,194

1,676,041 1,020,513




22.

23.

Notes to the Financial Statements B iR & M=

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RENESH
Assets &E
Liabilities aE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounted to HK$24,357,000 (2010:
HK$19,886,000) were credited to the income statement during
the year.

22,

23.

31 March 2011 =F——#=A=+—H

EBWERR R EWERE ®)
GEEs AEEREsERKESRA
WEF ZEEFIERBINEER

EaH BEFREZERREAS A
rEBERFERRBZ2EFAE B
ERE ANAESRAANEEERER
FEARER ZEEHNATE2HED
HtEFBELRERE AEELERZ
EEREBRERR AEERAY -

Group
&

2011 2010
e —F-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BHFTT
17,006 17,731
8,026 3,194

FEBCHITZEITEHEPEHER
MERMESHUEEEEREAR - NEF
W RAE RPN LB SEEIRIEITEIR
BN QRESEESBH24,357,000T (=F
—Z 4 : #%19,886,0007T) °
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, RBEeERBEEEY
Group Company

£ D F]
2011 2010 2011 2010

=% Z%B-%F —%¥-—-F —T-%TF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BY¥Fr EBETT

Cash and bank balances HERIBITER 487,037 438,010 162 951
Time deposits with original ASTYB=EAR

maturity of less than three 2| HY > 7E Hf

months when acquired F& 979,898 836,379 — —
Time deposits with original AT BH=@A UL

maturity of over three EfzEH

months when acquired PEE 2,765,900 252,076 —_ —

4,232,835 1,526,465 162 951

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and the time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$365,774,000 (2010: HK$364,890,000)
and HK$3,142,038,000 (2010: HK$969,455,000), respectively.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies in the
mainland China, however, under mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period less than or equal to one year depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

RBEHR FEEAUARBEE 2
BeRBTEGBREHERINAESB
#£365,774000C( — T — T F: B ¥
364,890,000t ) K & #3,142,038,000 7T (=
T — T B ¥969,455,0007T) c ARER
FEAETHEBLBEEMEY  HRIE
FEAENEE SEERTESERE
AEEEEZRERBETHEEL 2R
THARBERBAHEMER -

RITERBEST BRTFERFZRIVT
BEXRFNE BHEHMERZ2ERBAR -
FHRUT  RFAEEZNFEREFRM
E-WRESEHRERFTRRBRNAE -
ROTEBREVREREREERFNR
T



25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25.

31 March 2011 =&——

ENERRRESRE
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#=ZH=+—H

Group
E- ]

2011 2010
—2-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Trade payables FE{TERTX 1,400,632 994,802
Bills payable ENEE 824,018 40,858
2,224,650 1,035,660

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AREHR RBEZEAH 2 BNRARE

DHWT

Group

&5
2011
—E——F
HK$°000
B F T

2010
—z-=5
HK$°000
BEFT

Within 90 days 90H A 1,383,556 977,321
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 17,076 17,481
1,400,632 994,802

RBEPR BERABFWMER -—RSD
0K K RRH -

At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HtENERIRAREFAEE
Group
£®
2011 2010
—B——f —E-TH
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Other payables H fth P& A4 R X 240,688 130,284
Accrued liabilities EiEE 246,887 229,004
487,575 359,288

HEMNRRAENS  BFHERHMA=

BA -
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MESRITER

Effective Effective
ELLDE] annual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$°000
BERFERN=E BB E A=
(%) ! BT T (%) ZH B BT T
Current T E
Bank loans IRITER within 1 year within 1 year
— unsecured — I 1R 0.56-0.95 R—FR 3,024,535 0.45-1.50 R—FR 1,223,044
Non-current IR E
2012-2013 2011-2014
Bank loans RITER —E——FZF —E-——FF
— unsecured — K 0.61-0.86 —EF—= 563,724 0.65-1.50 —E—MFE 489,744
3,588,259 1,712,788

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate interest rate
Company (%) Maturity HK$°000 (%) Maturity HK$’000
BERFERx BREFR =
AT (%) BEFT €] ZH B BEFT
Current RE
Bank loans RITER within 1 year within 1 year
— unsecured — |IK R 0.82-0.95 R—FR 76,667 0.65-0.75 R—FR 161,333
Non-current R E
Bank loans IRITER 2011
— unsecured — fH 3 — 0.65-0.75 —E—-—F 76,667

76,667 238,000
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27. EBRITER@E)

Group Company
% o
2011 2010 2011 2010

—®—-% -2-TF -8 -5 -T-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT EMTT  BEFT BT

Analysed into: A i
Bank loans repayable: RITEFERE
Within one year or R—F R
on demand BER 3,024,535 1,223,044 76,667 161,333
In the second year g 351,157 260,204 — 76,667
In the third to fifth years, F=2FERF
inclusive BREEEWE 212,567 229,540 — —
3,588,259 1,712,788 76,667 238,000
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s bank borrowings in Hong R=ZZE2-——-F=ZF=+—-H X%
Kong dollars and New Taiwanese dollars amounted to ZEBERFEAEURITERD AR BY
HK$3,588,259,000 (2010: HK$1,706,680,000) and nil (2010: 3,588,259,000t( — & — T F .8 ¥
HK$6,108,000), respectively. 1,706,680,000 ) R BM(ZZE—ZF | B
6,108,0007T) °
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s banking facilities were R-ZZE——F=ZA=Z+—HB TEEHR
supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and TEEDHARARARETHKH B ARESL

certain of its subsidiaries. BEER-
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28. DEFERRED TAX

28. EEHE

Withholding tax
on the distributable

Depreciation allowance

profits of the Group's in excess of Revaluation of
PRC subsidiaries related depreciation properties Others
AEEMN
Al BHAE
1|9 WEERN L/ES
HELXBR B Hity A&t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
ZE--F “E-%F “E--F ZE-ZF ZE--F ZE-2f ZE--fF ZE-Zf “B--§ ZE-EF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT EMFr EETn EETrc BEFr BEFr BEFr E¥Tn BTt EBETx
At beginning of year A% %] 45,972 21,579 (721) (721) 7,250 2,753 3,957 2,619 56,458 26,230
Deferred tax charged F R A
to the income FER
statement HIET
during the year B
(note 9) (K3F9) 26,699 24,393 - — 1,799 4,497 1,360 1,338 29,858 30,228
At end of year RER 72,671 45,972 (721) (721) 9,049 7,250 5,317 3,957 86,316 56,458

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$710,428,000 (2010: HK$670,203,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries of which no assessable profits are expected
to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty

earnings generated after 31

between mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 March 2011, the Company has no significant unrecognised
deferred tax asset/liability (2010: nil).

AEBREBELSZHEEBR A
#710,428000t( — T — T F: B ¥
670,203,0007T) » ZEEEHBEEN DT
ERMFEAZBEAFERHEIBRZER
REN BHRAEREEEEEEBEZM
BARARARKBRETEEER
BEERBEETENZSHERETER

RIBEEEREBE PRRKENIIERSE
AREAILTREEERNRZEE10%E
HRE ZERBA-ZZENF-A—-0
AR BRAR-ZFZLF+TZA=1+—
BREENFBE - IFREETHRF R
BERERMBER . AR EZEBRETHAERK
HE- BEBARAEBHNRERD10% - B it
AEERZERPERERLOMEDQF
B-Z2ZNF-A-—BEBNEFFFDIKH
REBEMBENEE-

AR MERRKEZRE  XESHIE
AEABMAER2ER -

ANZE-——F=ZA=Z+—-B KQAKHE
BEAABRELEHREELEE BB (=Z
BEHE) o

=
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Shares g
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$000
B F T BT T
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,000 iz
HK$0.05 each in nominal value FREERBY0.057T 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBEITRAR:
1,360,846,104 1,360,846,104
(2010: 1,334,608,104) shares (ZZ—2=% 11,334,608,104) &
of HK$0.05 each in nominal value SRE{EBY0.057T 68,042 66,730
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital AARRAEAREAFRAZSBEHMMNT

during the year is as follows:

Number of Issued Share

shares in share premium

issue capital account Total
BT BT R

ROBE B B iR EoR ]

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BEFT BEFT BETRT

At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZTHhFEMA—AH 1,327,211,104 66,360 352,413 418,773
Exercise of share options TIEBERE (a) 7,397,000 370 37,399 37,769
Transfer from share option BEEREMRE

reserve DN — — 2,396 2,396
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-ZTF=A=+—-H

and 1 April 2010 R=—Z-ZFFWA—H 1,334,608,104 66,730 392,208 458,938
Exercise of share options TR IR RE (b) 10,400,000 520 52,586 53,106
Transfer from share option HERERE

reserve DN — — 1,125 1,125
Acquisition of non-controlling B8 B k12 %

interests Em (c) 16,000,000 800 141,600 142,400
Repurchase of shares = B8 AR 10 (d) (162,000) (8) (1,234) (1,242)

At 31 March 2011 R-ZZE——F=ZA=+—H 1,360,846,104 68,042 586,285 654,327
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The subscription rights attaching to 5,800,000 share options and
1,597,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively,
resulting in the issue of 7,397,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$37,769,000.

The subscription rights attaching to 8,150,000 share options and
2,250,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively,
resulting in the issue of 10,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each in nominal value each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$53,106,000.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 24 September
2010 entered into between the Group and non-controlling
shareholders, the Group further acquired a 10% equity interest in
Baleno Holdings Limited by issuance of 16,000,000 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$8.9 per share as a partial consideration
(note 32).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company repurchased
162,000 of its ordinary shares HK$0.05 each in nominal value from
the market at a total consideration of approximately HK$ 1,242,000
(including repurchase expenses of HK$4,000). These repurchased
ordinary shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company and
the share premium of HK$1,234,000 (including repurchase
expenses of HK$4,000) has been debited to the share premium
account of the Company. In addition, the Company also
transferred HK$8,000, which is equivalent to the nominal value of
these repurchased shares, from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve as set out in note 31(b) to the financial
statements.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the

financial statements.

29.

B AR (47)
B 13 (#8)

i

@

b

©

@@

580000017 K 1,597,00017 1 75 53 fE HE 2 S IR HE
7B B #497 T R B B5607T 2 iR IE B
FETE (B aE30) - F UL - 7,397,000 8% & A%
B0 T 2 EBRUANBRERZHER
2R IEX)E 377690007 F LT »

815000017 & 225000017 [ -3 FEHE 2 FE IR 1
7B R B #497 T R B #5607T 2 iR E
FELTE (KfaE30) » FE UL - 104000008 & 1% E
BB T 2 EBRUFHIGER 2B H
BB EH 53106000 F X FZ/T ©

BAEEEFZERRRR-FE-—FFEA/Z
T A#FHTHE Bl - A EEZEREYE
8907t 817 H & IR 16000000 % » 1£ 7358 A
TEJE 2 5 (B IR 2 R] BB 51 10% 1% 22 B9 BB 19 1€
18 (Kfa32) »

REZB-——F=ZA=+—HIFER X2
AL 1E 48 #1,242000 T R T 5 1 IE R &5
JR ET 1B #5005 7T 2 B B IR 162000 (B 13 E]
FEEHBE4000T) - B AR AEFHEE
FBEEIR - BE1234000T (B1E 0158 B 8
#40007T) B 18 IR 175 B AR T HIBR o U5 -
A2 B HI 1R B ik R BB 13 B 158 000 IR A FE
Elf#fE - HERBREBRG ZEE  BFHE
BB BEIREAE310) -

Bk
AR zBRESERBEZSHBETZ
BREZFHAENCHRNY B RERME
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 28 August 2002 and will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, employee or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors but is not more than ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. IERESTE @)
The following share options were outstanding under the MBEBR ZFE8TRITEZBRED
Scheme at the end of the reporting period: T

2011 2010
=E——F —E-—EF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
bn#EF 15 i B #E hn#EF 15 9 g
THEER ®E TEER #AE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
58T F HREET F
At beginning of year A E ) 5.30 40,490 5.27 47,937
Exercised during the year FRE{THE 5.11 (10,400) 5.11 (7,397)
Forfeited during the year F£ R 2 B — — 5.60 (50)
At end of year RER 5.37 30,090 5.30 40,490
The weighted average closing price per share at the date of RITEEBRESE AN MEFTIRMDKTE
exercise for share options exercised during the year was BBHEBSTTT ©
HK$8.57.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RBEHR RTFEBERETFEERRK
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows: THEEBRAOT :

Number of options

BREHE
Exercise price* Exercise period 2011
TEER THEHR —F——F
HKS$ per share ‘000
HREE T F
4.97 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012 11,000 19,150
—EE-EAAT-BE-Z-—#hA+A
5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014 17,100 18,600
—EENF=ZA-t+ARHE-Z-NE=ZA=-+HHAH
5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014 1,990 2,740

—EEARENA-BEZE-WE=ZA=THH

30,090 40,490
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * FERERYITIEB 15 R 2 B B IR 30 R AL IR
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the AR KA E A B 0 ] T2 o

Company’s share capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year, 10,400,000 (2010: 7,397,000) share options were
exercised resulted in the issue of 10,400,000 (2010: 7,397,000)
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$520,000 (2010: HK$370,000) and share premium of
HK$53,711,000 (2010: HK$37,399,000), as further detailed in
note 29 to the financial statements.

During the year, no share option was forfeited (2010: 50,000
share options were forfeited upon resignation of an employee,
resulting in a reduction in the share option reserve which was
transferred to retained profits of HK$75,000).

At 31 March 2011, the Company had 30,090,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 30,090,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$1,505,000 and share premium of HK$160,070,000
(before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, 100,000 and
50,000 share options were exercised by two employees of the
Company on 8 April 2011 and 7 June 2011, respectively, resulting
in the issue of 150,000 ordinary shares of the Company with
new share capital of HK$8,000 and share premium of
HK$844,500.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 29,940,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 2.2% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company and the then nominal value of the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of
acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which
occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares in
1992.
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BRESE @)

R & &K 10,400,000 ( = & — & & :
7,397,000 ) R EWITFE > BEHA DA
B 17 8 B2 10,400,000/ (= & — T F .
7,397,000 %) » % 32 /0 £ A% 7% 38 % 520,000
T(=ZZ—FF: B #370,0007T) M K 2
BEBES3 71,000 (ZE—FF B
37,399,0007t) » # 4 & B & R B K R M
29 o

RER TEEREFRE(CZ-ZTF:
—{u{E S BB & B E 50,0000 BE R AE - B
EARATNBREREEERIAREEF
i 2> 78 % 75,000 7T) °

% % &) T 4 530,090,00017 BB A% £ K &
THE- REAQRAZREERER &2
AITESRTZ2BRESEHEIIRT
30,090,000 X AR 2 E B > WEINE
4 R 7R 58 51,505,000 7T & BR 19 0% (B B 1
160,070,000 7T (B 1T E A Al ©

RERARE AQOAMUEER =T ——
FUANBR=ZZ——F~<ABtATEH
100,00017 % 50,0007 B BR # > B Z AR A 7
4T E B IR 150,000 8% » K 3T 03 AR AN B S
8,000 7T 0 B 7 % f& 75 %5 844,500 7T ©

REBHERRZER  ADAEZFTET
1545 29,940,00017 BE IR R ETE - HER
ZAARRATEETRDH2.2% °

#E

(a) &H
AEERAFEAEIRELSER
Hp 8B 2 RAReRZEHX
A o

HEALBE-—AAZFLEHATH
ER TEEZEHEBSRREALQAC
BRORAZEHEEMKBHE QR
REBRBZERTRABEZE
B o
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31.

(a)

(b)

RESERVES (continued) 31. #H#E @@
Group (continued) () &£E#E)
As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, HERVBRERMT24 XAEEE
the Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 S A B KREEREIRBEM
that permitted goodwill in respect of business R AHAR-ZZ—FR8EnzE
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain BENEENBEHLBEERARE
eliminated against consolidated retained profits. The A N BB —FHMNEHE
amounts of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained AERIE3055A] 0 FIWE —HE AR
profits, arising from the acquisition of an associate prior EENEE NHEBFNGEREBEF
to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000 h.HE4BEN _SE——F=A=1+—
as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010. AR=—ZE—-—ZF=ZA=Z+—HBAB
#%110,648,000 JT °
In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice RIBEMELZR XAR—2EHER
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Office) Limited, a MBAR  XKEXBOEMBEEEE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, whose principal RE)BRLAT HEEEEREMN
operation is conducted in Macau, is required to ET EEFIMETLR25% MR
appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit after MEBNZLEHRE BEEZHEER
tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the reserve BEZZANAERNELAIS50%
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund.
Company (b) 4F
Share Capital
premium Share option redemption Contributed Retained
Notes account [ [ surplus profits Total
(&N
Kiat RAGEE BREME EEFE BEARH REEF e
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BYTF T BEFT BYTF T BEFT BEFT
At 1 April 2009 ZEZNFNA-R 352,413 6,581 1,687 48,708 443,775 853,164
Exercise of share options TREBRE 29 39,795 (2,39) — — — 37,399
Forfeiture of share option % iR #€ HUH 30 — (75) — — 75 —
Total comprehensive income 7 & E 2@
for the year 58 — — — — 196,303 196,303
2009/2010 interim “EERN/CBR-BEE
dividend AR B 1 — — — — (292,242)  (292,242)
2009/2010 proposed final ~ —2Zh /—E-TFE
dividend BRAHRES 11 — — — — (347,042) (347,042)
At 31 March 2010 and }?\,;‘, ZFE=ZA=+—-8
1 April 2010 R-E-Z2FEMA-A 392,208 4,110 1,687 48,708 869 447,582
Acquisition of BAFER
non-controlling interests B 141,600 — — — — 141,600
Exercise of share options TEERE 29 53,711 (1,125) — — — 52,586
Repurchase of shares 5] B A% 17 29 (1,234) — 8 — (8) (1,234)
Total comprehensive AEEZE
income for the year 58 — — — — 757,773 757,773
201012011 interim —E-3 /-3 &%
dividend HHER S 1 — — - — (310,825)  (310,825)
2010/2011 proposed final —2-% /5§
dividend FORA R 1 — — — — (408,284)  (408,284)
At 31 March 2011 R=ZB--F=A=+-8 586,285 2,985 1,695 48,708 39,525 679,198
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. f#E @
(b) Company (continued) (b) T (E
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the EBAATE—HAAZFELTmEAMN
difference between the nominal value of the issued share BH KRRATZERHMBHAEATLD
capital of the Company and the then combined net assets BOBRACEEBEEHRAKENE QT
of the subsidiaries acquired on the date of acquisition, as RUBEBEZAHEESH =5 -
a result of the reorganisation which occurred before the BEBEERE-NAN—FRTZE(EE
listing of the Company’s shares in 1992. Under the M) AIRETERTREEAES -

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a

distribution may be made out of the contributed surplus

under certain circumstances.

32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. AMBARIZRE
Company
A
2011 2010
—E——F —E2-=EF
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFTT BHF T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRMG - A 48,908 48,908
Due from subsidiaries FEWHE A TERER 773,506 851,069
822,414 899,977
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and HB AT ZRARGERR DEEKE - EF

have no fixed terms of repayment. EREERTERDB -
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc., are indirectly held by

32. RMIBARIZKRE (#®&)
BrTrustland Inc.%h > FT BB 2 A HA K
ARBEEFEE - TEMBLARAFBENT :

the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of incorporation/

registration and operations

AR B R
RERMR

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share capital
BRITEER
EECRAEE

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
QT EMGER
ZEAE
2011 2010
—2--F —E-ZF

Principal activities

ETERK

Trustland Inc. * British Virgin Islands/ US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
KEERLRB/BE 18,000% 7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Sale of finished knitted
Non-voting deferred fabric and dyed yarn
HK$3,125,000
KERBERAE )] EERA B 1,000 HEHBATREY
EREBELRAE
7B 3,125,000 T
Texwinca Enterprises (China) British Virgin Islands/PRC Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited*
BXE(FRE)BRRBRAF EBWELEE/HE 1% REER
Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,557,950,000 100 100 Production of finished
Garment Limited* knitted fabric and
dyed yarn
RERKEHAURERAT> HE/hE AR % #2,557,950,000 % EELBHBHREY
Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Procurement of raw
(Macao Commercial Offshore) materials and sale of
Limited* finished knitted fabric
and dyed yarn
KAER B ORPI 8 =B R A5) P JELP# 100,000 7T RERM MR E S
BRAA* BHEREY
Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of
management services
BREREERAT ] B2 RUEERB
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100 Property holding
Non-voting deferred
HK$2
KEEXERDT ] EERABE®I0T BEME
mR B R A
L PE
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100 Property holding
KETAERRA it 7% 15,903,100 7T BENE
Baleno Holdings Limited */** British Virgin Islands US$10,000 64 54 Investment holding
NRBEEERAT* /= RBELHE 10,0007 BEER
Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
B ARD R &8 7#10,0007T BEREGNZEERSH
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RMBRARZRE (#)

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno
Company Limited *

EMNRE R REERA R

Shanghai Haiwen Baleno Garment
Company Limited *

LR REERA R

Beijing Xingyu Baleno Garment &
Decoration Company Limited *

LERETFHERRERHERAT *

Chonggqing Dasheng Baleno Fashion
Company Limited *

EEREWRERHERDE*

KT ERRAERAR *

Silver Kingdom Limited *

RBEARAF *

Bigpoint Limited

AEERDE

Highrich Corporation *

KEERDA*

Winca (Dongguan) Motor Service

Limited *

KERR)IEHEBREERAA*

Successful Channel Corporation *

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations

EMRYERE
S E L

PRC/Mainland China

HEHE KR

PRCU/Mainland China

hE T E AR

PRC/Mainland China

HE T E AR

PRC/Mainland China

HE E AR

PRC/Mainland China

HE B AR

British Virgin Islands/Taiwan

KEEZEB /A%

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

KBELZHB/PEAE
British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

KEELZEB /TEAE

PRC/Mainland China

HEREIRE

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
HERLZHS /PEAE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share capital
ERTEER
ERERAEE

HK$103,800,000

78 103,800,000 7T

US$200,000

200,000 % T

US$500,000

500,000% 7T

HK$3,880,000

7 #3,880,000 7T

RMB500,000

A R % 500,000 7T

Us$1

1%

HK$28,460,000

7B#528,460,0007T
Us$1

1%7

32.

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
KRR EGEESR
ZEDE
2011
—E8——%

2010
—3-%%

64 54

64 51.4

64 54

64 54

64 54

64 54

100 100
64 54
100 100
64 54

Principal activities

ETEEK

Retailing and distribution
of causal apparel and
accessory

BREHN2TERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERRHN 2 BZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

BRRENBERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERRHN2ETERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and

accessory
ERRGN2TERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and

accessory
EREGNZEERDH

Holding of trademarks and
provision of franchise
services

BEARRREMREBFLEE
BR %

Provision of management
services and sub-licensing
of trademarks

REEERERAERE
R

Provision of repair and
maintenance services for
motor vehicles

REABEZEBERRERE
Property holding

Zk/ES
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32.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary/

registration and operations registered share capital

EMRY ER BRTEER
REXLY ERERAEE

Billion Global Limited * British Virgin Islands/Taiwan US$1

BRI ERD T * KMELHEE /A (ES

AR REERAR * PRC/Mainland China RMB1,010,000
HERE KR AR #1,010,000 5%

RENCHEBHERRAR * PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,880,000
HE R KB AR #5,880,0007T

ROBRBBHERAR * PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000
HELRE KR A R #500,000 7T

AR ERAR * PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000
HEL R KB A R #600,000 7T

Excel Billion Inc. * British Virgin Islands/Taiwan us$1

KEBEBRERAR* HEBELER/AKE (EH

KERCEBHERAF * PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000
HEHE KB 752,100,000 7T

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm

of the Ernst & Young global network.

** Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 24 September
2010 entered into between the Group and non-controlling
shareholders, the Group further acquired a 10% equity interest in
Baleno Holdings Limited by issuance of 16,000,000 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$8.90 per share and a cash consideration
of HK$60,880,000, thus increasing its equity interest therein to
64%.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

32. RMBARZRE (#)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company Principal activities
QT EMER
ZEAX TEXH
2011 2010
—2—-F —2-ZFF

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGNZEERDH

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

BERERGNZEERDH

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERRGNTERDH

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

BERERGNZEERDH

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGNZEERDH

64 54  Property holding
BEWE

64 54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGNZEERDH

* WHHLKET BRI EERA ML KE
STETE R PTEIRR K S B ¥ o

o RAREFEFERRER—E—FFAA=
T AFTHEE RS  FEEEGREY
8907T 317 7 22 B] 16,000,000 /% I8 17 K X% 19
2B 60880000 T B IE T EHE BB R A A
10% #y#Ezs - B iE A s E64% ©

LREFIHARAD2ETEMBLT  EF
RANEHAEB 2 RXEBRIELER
HRAEBEEFHEZIERND -ESR
AHIFMEMBLASSHREEANRIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 24
September 2010 entered into between the Group and non-
controlling shareholders, the Group further acquired a 10%
equity interest in Baleno Holdings Limited by issuance of
16,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$8.9 per share
as a partial consideration. Further details of the transaction are

set out in notes 29 and 32.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

REERMEZEEZ

Bank guarantees given in lieu of

property rental deposits MITER

Guarantees of banking facilites BEZ QARRITEEREZ
granted to an associate EIR

Guarantees of banking facilities BKE QA RRTEERIEZ
granted to subsidiaries B’R

As at 31 March 2011, the banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries with guarantees given to the banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$3,588,259,000 (2010: HK$1,474,788,000) and the
banking facilities granted to an associate with guarantees
given to the banks by the Company was not utilised (2010:

nil).

33.

34,

S
HK$°000
BEFT

31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H

REREBRIE

TEFRERS
BASEEFERRRR-Z-—2F1A
“TtTHEBEEINEERSE  AEEZRER
78 #58.90 7T 8 17 H & 48 /% 16,000,000 % - 1
ARBEANMEEREBRERQABTDEIMO%ER
MBORE XZNFREHRME29R
32°

KFEE
(@) RE|EHA UTREEERRHH
R RME

Group
58
2011

Company

AT
2011
—e——%
HK$’000
BT

2010 2010

—E-=5F

—E-%F

HK$°000
BETT

HK$000

BT

6,492 4,517 — _

12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

11,466,000 4,786,830

RZIE——F=ZA=+—-H HEA
FCEBAALNTCHEERZRITE
E #) 5 78 #3,588,259,000 7T (= & —
ZF 7B ¥1,474,788,000 7T ) » T B
ENRAUEHARNQAAEHFERZ
RITEE(ZZE—ZTF |) -
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated a review
on the tax affairs for the past years of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. In March 2007, March 2008, February 2009,
January 2010 and March 2011, protective tax assessments
totalling HK$322,038,000, HK$224,000,000,
HK$275,000,000, HK$578,000,000 and HK$246,050,000 for
the years of assessment 2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003,
2003/2004 and 2004/2005, respectively, have been issued
by the IRD. Objections have been raised by the Group
against the protective tax assessments. The directors of
the subsidiaries believe that there are valid grounds to
object to the tax claimed. Subsequent to the objections,
the IRD agreed to hold over the tax claimed completely
subject to the purchase of tax reserve certificates in the
sum of HK$40,000,000, HK$35,000,000, HK$25,000,000,
HK$25,000,000 and HK$32,000,000 for the years of
assessment 2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003, 2003/2004
and 2004/2005, respectively. In view that the tax review is
still in progress, the outcome of the case is still uncertain.
Up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the directors of the subsidiaries consider that adequate
tax provisions have been made in the financial statements.

34. EAEE#E)

(b)

REZ-ZZELtF=ZA=+—-HL
FE BERBRAIBEB)MALE

EHROMBEARRHAUEFER
BERETER RZ gitfﬁ_
A-ZZEZENF=ZR- =

:gg :ggz :gg: =
F2ER= B /EFENKR=-F
TN CEEREHFEEDRIBHS
1R BE M B A5 5 1 £ 78 %5 322,038,000
T B 224,000,000 B ¥

275,000,000 5t + % #5 578,000,000 5T

K 78 # 246,050,000t © AEE T 5
DERBUEBBEIGFEERY - &
EWBARNESZSHEEXNEER
BEMBHAREERE AREE B

BREEEMMNZBBR L
AR-TEF/-FF- -FF

—/=B%= . —%%=/-%%
= -Z%%2= /-“22NR=-%%
M -ERERERBEES N EE R
i % € %8 £ /8 % 40,000,000 7T * B #E
35,000,000 7T + & # 25,000,000 7T
7 # 25,000,000 7T [ & #532,000,000
o MR ERERBERTS B
HRERDATEN - BERNBH
Rt EEMEANESR B
Bz 2BARED RN -

[
q
i

Al
Al
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to six years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total

future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

R—FR

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

RAF%E

After five years

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings for
factories, retail outlets, plant and machinery, a training
centre, and staff and directors’ quarters under operating
lease arrangements. Such leases are negotiated for terms
of not more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

R—FR
BE_FEELF(BEERWMSF)
RAF#E

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years

31 March 2011

—E——#=h=+-4

35. REHERH

(a)

F_FEELF(BREEEWMF)

(b)

fERHBEA
FEBRBELEHETHHMEET
REWME (ME14) BRTHEB-—F=
RNE-HAGR-—REETHFEHM
RERERITATRBEEEFMSE
MEBEHBAESHE-

RI|ERR  AEERBEBTR L
ZAAHEREHEEGN ZRER
BEVESALEIHBEROT

Group
&
2011 2010
—E--% C—T-2F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETF T
17,679 16,879
28,188 34,798
— 3,689
45,867 55,366
fERAEBEA

FEEREKSEHAEZHFARNO
T AERE  TEMT  BERK
WEBIFRL - BIRESES - &
EHNBRT AP ITBEBATF -

RBEBRR  AEERBEEET Y
MAITREECEHESNRRER
FEAESBEIBERNT

Group
%E

2011 2010
—g——% C-Z-%F
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT BETFT
514,709 556,949
885,277 1,020,380
597,423 627,723
1,997,409 2,205,052
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee (continued)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent
based on the sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the
terms and conditions as set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum

lease commitment has been included in the above table.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
commitments under operating lease arrangements (2010:
nil).

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the

end of the reporting period were as follows:

In respect of property, plant and

35.

36.

BME - BERRE CIL

equipment, contracted but not BRIE
provided for B
In respect of property, plant and RUE -BERRZHE E&E
equipment, authorised but not 88
contracted for HEY)
In respect of an investment in REREN—HE
a subsidiary AT

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no capital

commitments (2010: nil).

KedHEg<Hkm@

(b) {EBEBA )
HOMT 2 RLHEYBES DREE
HEeARBERHEOFTRZBERR
BEZMTHEEMET 2 RRHE
CMERCERSEEE - ANERE
bt SRR 2 HER ML
RRFAHBRAES MRHAS
KSR o

RBERR  ARALEEEHER
HERECE-ZF 8-

BERMEE
75 8 B T 4R 45 D R LU T S A S R

Group
S
2011 2010

—g——% —2-2%
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEF T

862 41,011
330,331 330,331
— 34,000
331,193 405,342

RBEHR AR RAIEERERIE(ZS
—EE M) o

= T AN
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, the Group had the following related

party transactions:

Sales to Megawell HETFEE
Purchases from Megawell ERERESEY
Rental expenses paid to BREEAFAXAES
related companies EH
Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were
made according to the prices and conditions offered to the
major customers of the Group.

The directors considered that the purchases from Megawell
were made according to the prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other customers of Megawell.

The rental expenses were paid to related companies, of
which certain directors of the Company are also the
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of
directors’ quarters, retail outlets and training centre for
certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
directors considered that the monthly rentals were charged
based on the prevailing market rates at the dates of the
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’
quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as

detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided

certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to

Megawell, as detailed in note 34(a) to the financial

statements.

37.

31 March 2011 =F——#=HA=+—H

BEALXRS
() RER AEEREFTATEEAL
%5 :

Notes 2011 2010

Bt i —g—-5 —T-®H

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

(i) 386,916 507,931

(ii) 359,626 266,871

(iii) 24,487 23,469
BEE -

0 FBIHEE (FEFp B E R A]) 2 HETS
RIEXEBETEFZFIRHZBRE
IRIFATIL ©

(i) — EBRADEAEEREZEERIENS
HEERNAZFF B ZEBERIFMNE
BE -

(i)  HEERRXNTEELAIEREG
BEBRPEAREZNE R ANEERE
& FEPIHREIFL - ZERA
ZEBRBEmBRRIBARAZEH
EZ - BEFRARGAZHEELIREH
ERRFTAZTSEREE - 14
ZEFEEEHEHEAIERESH
& IR BEIRFMET o

o ARRABRAEEBEEFEHSE
FRITEEER FHERBRNGHK
R EE34(@) °
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

As at 31 March 2011, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advances of HK$72,043,000 (2010: HK$19,736,000) to
Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 3% (2010: HIBOR plus 3%) per annum.

In addition, as at 31 March 2011, Nice Dyeing Factory
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has provided advances of
HK$257,062,000 (2010: HK$268,297,000) to Baleno
Holdings Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, at 83% of HIBOR plus 3% (2010: 83% of HIBOR
plus 3%) per annum.

A non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s 64%-owned
subsidiary (2010: 54%) had provided an unconditional
guarantee to indemnify the Group from any loss arising
from the recoverability of prepayments made to a supplier
of the Group of HK$22,317,000 (2010: HK$24,178,000) as
included in the balance of the prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of the Group as at the end of the

reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

Short term employee benefits EMEERET

Post-employment benefits BEEEA

Total compensation paid to FTEEBAE
key management personnel NGB

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in

note 7 to the financial statements.

37.

BREALRS #®)

(b)

(9]

(d)

R-ZZE——F=A=+—H ' F*5H
ZEEREMBARKEREBER
ARAAEEZHEZEREWE D
ANEEERAARMBZERAE
#72,043,000c(ZZE—FF: B
19,736,0007T) » FRXHBBIRTE
EREMI% (ZE—FF : HERIT
BEEFEM3%) ©

K R-ZE-——F=ZA=+—
B RXQARZ2EREMBE QA KE
A (REMBEEERB) BERLA
MAARFZTEREETWNBARHK
EEEEERAFRHENRBY
257,062,000 t( =& —F F: B ¥
268,297,0007T) * FRIEHEBEBIRIT
E2FEM3%M83% (ZE—FF :
EBMITRAEFREM3I%HISI%) °

AEEEE64A% (ZE—FTF  54%)
EaMBARZEP —FERR
RRAEEES-—HESERE
#22,317,000t (ZZE—FF : B
24,178,000t ) IRt AR E R LA %8
EEMUAEERK EZEX RS
HR ZRcBERBEARE T2
REAM KRR ERF o

AEBTEEEASHMH:

2011 2010
—g--% —®3-2%
HK$°000 HK$000
EEF T BEF T
103,041 107,619
267 60
103,308 107,679

ESHWEFBERNYB|MRMEET -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37. BEALTXRZ #)

Save as disclosed under “Details of non-exempt continuing BRIFENEEERERNIFERENEE
connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the BEXZHBIN FREEALIZHE
related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii) above (a)(ii) 8 & 1% £ ™ iR B 55 14A.65() 1% 1R &
constitute continuing connected transactions which are REBEBRR - 2ERANBILIRERIEN
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent BEBRERS -

shareholders approval requirement as defined in Chapter 14A
Rule 65(4) of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. REEE I HNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEBR  SESHITAKRAENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group &
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

at fair value

through profit

or loss — Loans and
held for trading receivables
UAREE
BHSH A
—RERE e W R A%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT B FT B FT

Trade and bills receivables FEWERRREREZRE — 1,676,041 1,676,041
Financial assets included in BERECSHE T2k

prepayments, deposits and Hitb EWERR A Z

other receivables EREE — 287,229 287,229
Long term rental deposits RSk e — 110,804 110,804
Derivative financial assets PTEEMERE 17,006 — 17,006

Cash and cash equivalents HeRhREEEY — 4,232,835 4,232,835
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
Group

38.

Financial liabilities

REESINEMIAE @)
=5
SHERE

Financial liabilities

at fair value
through profit or Financial
loss — held for liabilities at
trading amortised cost
LAREBEGE
BESBA R AR A
BExremasE ABRH
—REEE EA =R a3
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B FT B FT B FT
Due to an associate EEE QR — 45,707 45,707
Trade and bills payables EBNERARENRE — 2,224,650 2,224,650
Financial liabilities included BEREMESERR
in other payables and accrued EiadRz
liabilities EtWEE —_ 240,688 240,688
Derivative financial liabilities fTEsmEeRE 8,026 — 8,026
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kf 5 847 & &% — 3,588,259 3,588,259
Group &
Financial assets THEE

Held-to-
maturity

investments

FEIH
HIRE
HK$°000
BETFT

Trade and bills receivables

YRR R ERREE

Financial assets included in ~ BERBENSRE -T2k
prepayments, deposits and ~ H At EURER TR X
other receivables ZEMEE —
Held-to-maturity investments 5 Z Z B 1R E 272,888
Long term rental deposits KRS —
Derivative financial assets TEemEE —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEL2ZLEEY —

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit

or loss — Loans and
held for trading receivables
LA REGE
BEZHFA
BERENEemERE ERE
—RKEEE REWNE st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
EBEFT EBEFT EBEFT
— 1,020,513 1,020,513
— 222,673 222,673
— — 272,888
— 109,864 109,864
17,731 — 17,731
— 1,526,465 1,526,465
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Group
Financial liabilities

Due to an associate

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accrued
liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

B E AT

FE BRI FE S R 5
BEREMENRRR
FEEtEERZ
tREas
TEEREE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings i 24847 &=

Company
Financial assets

Due from subsidiaries
Dividend receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

FE W B 1B 2t B BR K
FEWRE
RERREEEY

38.

31 March 2011 =F——#=A=+—H

REESINEMIAE @)
=5

tHEE

Financial liabilities

at fair value

through profit

or loss —

Financial

liabilities at

held for trading amortised cost

UA R EHE
AHBHH A

Bai R 8 AR A
- h=R ABREY
—BEEE SRAaEs &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT B F T BT
— 42,633 42,633
— 1,035,660 1,035,660
— 130,284 130,284
3,194 — 3,194
— 1,712,788 1,712,788

AT

ETHEE
2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-EF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
ERREWRGIE BERREWRFIE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BETF T BETF T
773,506 851,069
410,000 200,000
162 951
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Company

31 March 2011

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITEMR
Financial liabilities included in BERETEBRAZ
accrued liabilities EMEeE

39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and

disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly;

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the financial
instruments measured at fair value held by the Group comprised
derivative financial instruments and were classified as Level 2.

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between

Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

38.

39.

EEEE D
A F

EHEE

He/mT A

2011
—E——fF

Financial

2010
—z-=F

Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost

R R 12 ¥ 85 R A

ARNESRERE AENSHRAE

HK$000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

76,667 238,000

127 561

AFEER
$EI%ﬁMT%&EE&ﬁ§$ﬁIﬂ
ZARE:

— R UHERZEERRERERT S
ZHREREHAB)FEZQAAE

F-R -RBBEEHEEERFEZLIRE MR

HEFTHAREBEEAZEZ
WAERYITEEIBEBERS
e

#
[1]
&

CREBEERFEZAORE ME
AEFTHIARBEEAZEZ
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40.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& Rk KisE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources
of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage this
mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group’s and
the Company’s equity (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) .

Increase/(decrease)

HEEMEERERBE @)

R = @ b ()
TREMTEBEMEHMEENER
T AEBENBRRAENMAERREAD
ANERESERAIENA ZEE (EY
FEERNZE) RN -

Group Company
%5 27
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

profit before

profit before

in interest rate tax and equity tax and equity

BRBAEFE  BRBUADER R

R=Em, REZEE M LM
(Om 2) (m 2) (m 2)
% HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
2011 —E——F
Hong Kong dollar pcg s 1 (22,832) (1,573)
Hong Kong dollar B 1 22,832 1,573
2010 —E-FE
Hong Kong dollar pecdis 1 (11,794) (3,187)
Hong Kong dollar el (1) 11,794 3,187
Foreign currency risk M | B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. Approximately 27%
(2010: 28%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst almost 47% (2010: 54%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional

currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) .

ARBEERSHEER  HEREE S
O U B U R 1T
SRR AEBO27% (B —BF
28%) 2 48 85 T LA AS 1 B 1 B M DL 41 2
EWEH  BEAT% (BT F  54%)
2 AR T BUAE 56 190 B DA O 2

iy
#& °©

TREBTRBEMK - £ EE AR
B8R T A% E 0 BRBARRI R K
EENREHARRTHNARSERS
BEREEMEENAMARENED)
B SR o



Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2011 —E-—F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens HEE AR
against RMB BE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WBE AR
against RMB HE

2010 —E-ZF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens HEE AR
against RMB BE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WBE AR
against RMB HE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial assets

are mainly well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed

in note 22 to the financial statements.

31 March 2011 = &——F=H=+—H
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Sk L B (AE)

Increase/

(decrease) in

Increase/(decrease)  profit before
in interest rate tax and equity

MR B Al i Al &
M

BER#Mm,
O 2) O 2)

% HK$°000
BB F T

1 3,310
(1) (3,310)
1 3,850
(1 (3,850)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BiXEREEEERKE &)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk B R B

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEBBERANARTEIREBITERU
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank FERECHNEBEMRBEEMIE -
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2011, 16% (2010: RZE——F=ZA=+—-H FAEHHE
29%) and 84% (2010: 71%) of the Group’s total borrowings will H16% (ZE—2F 129%) R84% (=&
mature over one year and in less than one year, respectively. —ZE2F 71%) DA RA—FER—FRE

H o

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the AEERBEEHANESRERE BERAXK
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BRI ANERBERAZNT :

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group =m

2011
—E——&F

Less than 3 to less than

On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total

=
REXR =fHA LR TZEAR —E8F i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Due to an associate EABE AR - 45,707 - - 45,707
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff 248 17 & — 2,729,328 309,252 566,744 3,605,324
Trade and bills payables BRRZREGZE — 1,496,433 728,217 — 2,224,650
Other payables H fth B 15 BR 3K 126,204 114,244 - 240 240,688
Derivative financial liabilities TEEMERE — 3,069 4,957 — 8,026
126,204 4,388,781 1,042,426 566,984 6,124,395

Group &

2010
=
Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total

=%

BEX  ZEAMM  t-EAR  —EIF at
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT  EEFT  EEFR EEFL ERTR

Due to an associate EREE AR - 42,633 - - 42,633
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff 248 17 & — 808,654 422,405 500,726 1,731,785
Trade and bills payables ERERREMSRE - 1,007,417 28,243 — 1,035,660
Other payables H AT BR X 13,19 117,088 - — 130,284
Derivative financial liabilities TEsHmEas — 888 2,306 — 3,194

13,196 1,976,680 452,954 500,726 2,943,556
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BiIREBMEEEER BZE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B R ()
Company AT

2011
—EgE——F

Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=2
RER =R HUA +=EAR &3t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Financial liabilities included in BREAESEBERZ

accrued liabilities cREE 127 — — 127
Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff £.#R 17 & 5 — 40,511 36,495 77,006
Guarantees of banking facilities &K B A BR1T

granted to subsidiaries EEMREZER 3,588,259 — — 3,588,259

3,588,386 40,511 36,495 3,665,392
Company AT

2010
=S
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total

=%
REX  ZfARMA  T=EAR —E0f &a
HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Financial liabilities included in BEREFEERAZ

accrued liabilities A R=L 561 — — — 561
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BRTER — 40,661 121,983 77,290 239,934
Guarantees of banking facilities AMBARRT

granted to subsidiaries EEREZER 1,474,788 - - — 1,474,788

1,475,349 40,661 121,983 77,290 1,715,283
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40.

41.

42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the equity holders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2010.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at an appropriate level.

40.

HEEMEERERBE @)

BEXER
FEEHEAEERARRAREREANE
MEsgEn ANEBRENEHREES
HEe UEERMEEBSIRERER-

AEBEEEREEURBELSEERLN
BEEHRE AEETUEBARER
RRKBENRE  ORRBEEARARBTH
RURFIHABERER - RBEE-F -
—F5=ZA=+t-HRZ-E-ZEF=ZA=+
—HLEFER BEXAEENER HER

FEBEREFAEBRERERER EX
BEXERIKRESRASEBNENR
MEBEHRUNARRFTHE AEBPEE
EEMEFERABELRREEAT -

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity

Gearing ratio

I R A
MR RERBESEEY

MR

EXRBELR

Group
£H

2011 2010
g% =
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT BHF T
3,588,259 1,712,788
(4,232,835) (1,526,465)
(644,576) 186,323
5,512,687 4,792,696
N/A 0.04

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
During the year, certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified and restated to conform with the current year’s

presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 22 June 2011.
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42,
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